






MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
BOARD COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

The Board of Education Committee of the Whole will meet on Monday, November 12, 2007 at
7:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street.

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the Wall and Available for Public Inspection

Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and comments
on agenda items only. Please make sure a request form is given to the Board Vice-President
before the meeting begins.

A G E N D A

1. Superintendent’s Goals

2. Review Food Service Management Contract RFP

3. Summer Projects (2008)

Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.
Please make sure a request form is given to the Board Vice President before the meeting begins.

1



2



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

AGENDA ITEM: First Reading of Policy 6320 
Curriculum, Instruction, Assessment: Students' Graduationlseparation 

DEPARTMENT: Educational Services 

rrcy oamPresprrgn m-loo' g p a m o n  
requirements. 

ACTION DESIRED: APPROVAL X_ DISCUSSION -INFORMATION ONLY- 

BACKGROUND: There is one minor change in this policy. The policy is being reviewed in 
relationship with the annual review of the related rule, 6320.1. 

OPTIONS AND ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: Leave rule unchanged or make 
additional revisions. 

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approve the changes as recommended. 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: 

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION: Revision of this rule will meet 
requirement to review and update annually. The suggested change will support students' work 
on Personal Learning Plans. 

TIMELINE: N/A 

RESPONSIBLE PERSON(S): Martha Bruckner, Judy Porter, Carol Newton 

SUPERINTENDENT'S APPROVAL: 

BOARD ACTION: 

3



Category: Curriculum, Instruction, and  Assessment 
Policy: Students' GraduationISeparation 

Graduation from our schools indicates that students have satisfactorily completed the prescribed 
courses of study in accordance with their respective abilities to 
achieve. and that thev have satisfactorilv passed anv district level assessments; and examinations - - 

or other requirements set by the faculty. In addition, students shall have maintained a satisfactory 
record of citizenship during the students' progression through the instructional program of the 
schools. 

The f a c ~  ..., gill establish detailed requirements to agree with the school goals as adopted by the 
Board. It is expected that, insofar as possible, the faculty will apply measures of achievement to 
provide evidence that each student has progressed far enough toward school goals to warrant the 
student's graduation according to the terms of this policy. 

The principal of each school will arrange each spring for appropriate awards and recognition 
programs and graduation exercises. Formal graduation exercises for elementary and middle 
schools will be at the discretion of each school. 

Related Policy and Rules: 63 15,63 15.1,6320.1 

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat § 79-729 

Date of Adoption: July 20, 1992 

Date of Revision: May 17, 1999; July 31,2000; June 4, 2007 

Millard Public Schools 
Omaha, NE 

4



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment 
Students, Requirements for Senior High School Graduation 

Students differ widely in interests, abilities and expectations. For this reason, the following are stated as minimums 
to allow flexibility in the planning of individual student programs. However, on the assumption that some elements 
should be shared in common by educated persons, these basic uniform requirements are established for graduation - - - 

from the M~llardTiiLiI~c schoo~s.  In addltlon to specltled credlt requlremenrs students must meet dlStrlCt level 
assessments in reading, writing, matlieniatics, science and social studies. 

I. Credits -- A minimum of 225 credits is required for graduation. Each student's program shall include but not be 
limited to the programs and courses listed below and may be amended, revised, or deleted by the Board of 
Education as approved and published in the curriculum handbooks of each high school. 

TOTAL 

PROGRAM 

English 

PROGRAM 

Social Studies 

COURSEISUBJECT 
CREDITS COURSE O R  SUBJECT AREAS 

English 9 
English 10 
English 11 
Oral Communications 

(Choice of Speech, Forensics, Debate I, or the 
combination of IB Language AI ,  IB Language B, 
and 12Ih Grade Theory of Knowledge) 

Choice of an English Selected Course 
The student ivill fakefii~e (5) credilsfioni the follo~ving: 
Enelish S e M e d  C o u r s ~  
British Literature Research Methods 
World Literature Creative Writing 
Career English Con~position & Literature 
Shakespeare Analysis of Mass Media 
AP English Literature IB English 12 
AP English Language & 
Composition 

TOTAL 
COURSEISUBJECT 

CREDITS COURSE O R  SUBJECT AREAS 

American History (Since 1914) - 9th 
World Geography - loth 
U.S. Government & Econon~ics - 12th 
World Perspectives or American Studies Course 

The student will take five (5) credits from the following: 
World Perspectives or American Studies 
World History Ethnic Studies 
World Affairs Law Studies 
World Religion AP United States History 
AP European History AP Macro Economics 

CREDITS 

CREDITS 

IB 20'h Century IB History of America 
History Topics 

5



TOTAL 
COURSEISUBJECT 

CREDITS 

-athematies ?.- -, Atgebmr-Algebrttfoundation~pilppm~t-LO - - 

course froni the math sequence. 
A course numbered 220 or higher. 10 
One additional math course. 
Coniurrrer Science cotrt'ses niav no! be a! 

fo~vard iiiath ct'edrt. 

PROGRAM 

Science 

PROGRAM 

Physical Education 

PROGRAM 

Health Education 

PROGRAM 

Technology 
Education 

TOTAL 
COURSEISUBJECT 

CREDITS COURSE OR SUBJECT AREAS 

Students should follow one of the following science 
sequences. 

Physical Science in Action- 9Ih 
Biology - loth 
Choice of Science Electives numbered 333 or higher 

Biology - 9Ih 
Chemistry or Physics - loth 
Choice of Science Electives numbered 333 or higher 

TOTAL 
COURSEISUBJECT 

CREDITS COURSE OR SUBJECT AREAS 

Choice of grade appropriate course. 

C~iwiczrhtnt Handbook describes PE cotirses aiid 
recommends grade appropriate levels. 

TOTAL 
COURSEISUBJECT 

Everyday Living taken in loth or 1 lth grades 

TOTAL 
COURSEISUBJECT 

CREDITS 

5 

COURSE OR SUBJECT AREAS 

Choice of Technology Selected Courses 

CREDITS 

15 

CREDITS 

5 

CREDITS 

5 

The student will take five (5) credits from the following: 

6



Technoloev Selected Courses 
Computer Technology Applications 
Introduction to Computer Science 
Foundations of Technology 
Introduction to Graphics Communications 
Introduction to IB Comuuter Science I 

TOTAL - - -  - 

COURSEISUBJECT 
r p  

Fine & Performing 5 Choice of Fine & Performing Arts Selected Courses 5  
Arts 

The student will take five ( 5 )  credits from the following: 
& Performin. Arts Selected C o u r s ~  

Any art course 
Any music course 
Drama I 
Theatre Appreciation 

TOTAL 

PROGRAM 

Electives 

COURSEISUBJECT 
CREDITS COURSE O R  SUBJECT AREAS 

Choice of Human Resources Course 
A total of 70 additional credits 

CREDITS 

The student will take five ( 5 )  credits from the following: 

Sociology IB Psychology 
Psychology IB Theory of Knowledge I 
AP Psychology 
Adult Living 
Child Development 
Introduction to Behavioral 
Sciences 

A. A grade of four (4) or better must be maintained in any course used to fulfill graduation 
requirements. 

B. Electives€kourses are offered in the subject areas previously listed and in business 
education, foreign language, family & consu~ner sciences, industrial technology, art, 
drama, debate, journalism and music. 

C. In order to provide flexibility in such situations as transfers and special needs, waivers 
may be submitted by staff and approved by the principal. 

D. A student must complete 225 credits as described herein in order to graduate and receive 
a diploma from the Millard Public Schools. 

E. A student must complete a Personal Learnine Plan. meetine district reauirenlents. 

7



11. Assessments-ln addition to 225 credits required for graduation, students must also successfully meet the 
Essential Learner Outcome assessment score requirements. 

111. Effect ofStudetit Performance 

A. When a student has successfi~lly met the Essential Learner Ootconies Assessment cut 
- - scoreforeachutcome. 

1. A notation shall be made in the student's cumulative record. Such information will 
be communicated to parent(s)lguardian(s) in writing. 

2. Having met the cutscores for the high school Essential Learner Outcomes 
assessnlents, the student shall have met an essential criteria for graduating from the 
Millard Public Schools. 

3. Upon successful conlpletion of the required number of credits, the student shall be 
eligible for a graduation diploma from the Millard Public Schools. 

B. If a student has not met the cutscore for a given Essential Learner Outcomes Assessment, 
tlie following shall occur: 

1. An Individual Learning Plan (ILP) shall he designed by a team of qualified staff. 
Classroom teachers may refer students to the Millard Intervention Team (MIT) for 
assistance in evaluating and implementing problem-solving and intervention 
strategies. 

2. Utilizing the Essential Learner Outcomes, school representatives will offer the 
student supplemental learning activities, which address recognized deficiencies. 
Supplemental learning activities may include but are not limited to the following: 

a. differentiatedlcomplementary instruction during regular classes (i.e., peer 
tutoring, needs groups, individualized instruction); 

b. before or after school tutorials; 
c. study hall tutorials; 
d. change of interdisciplinary teams or level of instruction; 
e. repeat of specific course(s) of study; 
f. attendance at specific class(es) designed to address deficiencies; and 
g. attendance at summer school. 

3. If the student is verified with a disability, the IEP Team may reconvene to review the 
ILP and to ensure that the IEP is written to assist the student in areas of weakness 
and that appropriate accomniodations are in place. 

4. If the student has a 504 Accommodation Plan, the 504 Team may reconvene to 
review the ILP and to ensure that needed accommodations are in place in areas of 
weakness. 

C. If, after a retake of an assessment, a student has not met the cutscore for a given Essential 
Learner Outcomes assessment, the following shall occur: 

I. The Individual Learning Plan will he reviewed by a qualified team and, if necessary, 
redesigned. Students shall be referred to MIT for identification of needs if not 
previously referred. 

2. The student shall be retested using the appropriate Essential Learner Outcomes 
assessment. Students shall be given the opportunity to be retested multiple times 

8



until the requisite cutscore is achieved. Students shall be given notice of the 
opportunities for retesting. 

3. The student will be considered ineligible for a diploma from the Millard Public 
Schools until such time that the requisite cutscores are achieved for high school 
Essential learner Outcomes assessments. 

4. If the student is verified with a disability or has a 504 Accommodation Plan, then the 
IEP or 504 Team will reconvene to review the education plan and may consider 

ring the cutscore requirement as part of the IEP or 504 Accommodation Plan. 

of the effect of lowering the cutscore. 

a. Applications for approval of lowered cutscore requirements andlor alternate 
assessments may be submitted by the student's IEP or 504 Team to the Associate 
Superintendent of Educational Services for consideration and, where 
appropriate, approval. The Associate Superintendent of Educational Services or 
designee shall decide and respond to all such requests. 

b. If the lowered cutscore is approved, the student shall then be eligible to receive a 
graduation diploma with appropriate notation from the Millard Public Schools. 

5. An additional opportunity is available to demonstrate student proficiency. After two 
retest attempts to meet the established cutscore(s) for the Essential Learner Outcome 
assessnient(s) without achieving the cutscore, students may register with the 
Associate Superintendent for Educational Services to participate in a process, as 
provided in the District's Assessment Procedures, to demonstrate an appropriate level 
of proficiency in reading, writing, math, science or social studies. 

IV. Student's Right to Appeal 

A. Students who have not achieved the necessary high school cutscores as approved by the 
Millard Board of Education, may appeal the denial of adiplonia. 

B. A student may appeal the denial of a diploma only on the grounds that the student's 
failure to achieve the required cut score is due to: 

1. The failure of the District to provide a reasonable acconlmodation which was 
previously requested by the student and denied by the District. 

2. The failure of the District to provide an alternate assessment or approve a 
demonstration of proficiency, which had been previously requested by the student 
and denied by the District. 

V. Procedures for Appeal 

A. Within seven (7) days after the receipt ofthe notice that the student failed to achieve the 
cut score or credits required for graduation from the Millard Public Schools, a written 
notice of appeal shall be served upon the Superintendent of the Millard Public Schools or 
hidher designee. Such appeal shall set forth all of the reasons for the appeal as provided 
herein and shall set forth the relief sought by the student, parent@) or guardian(s). Such 
notice of appeal may also include any additional information which is relevant to the 
appeal. 

B. Within seven (7) days after the receipt ofthe written notice of appeal and any supporting 
information relevant to the appeal, the Superintendent or designee shall consider and 
render a decision on the appeal based on whether the decision of the District was 

9



unreasonable. Such decision shall then he forwarded to the student's parent@) andlor 
guardian(s) advising the student's parent(s) and/or guardian(s) of the basis for the 
Superintendent's or designee's decision and the reasons therefore. 

C. Within seven (7) days after the receipt ofthe written notification from the Superintendent 
or the Superintendent's designee, a written request may be made by the student, parent(s), 
or e uardianls) Millard Board of Education or the Superintendent or - 
designee for a hearing before the Millard Board of Education ar a committee of the Board - - . . ~ to he held 
on the issue whether the decision ofthe Superintendent or his designee was unreasonahl~ 

thirty (30) days of the date the request for hearing was received. If a hear ingr-wst  
P i s  not received in a timely manner, the decision of 
the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee shall he final. 

E. The student, parent(s) and/or guardian@) shall be advised at least seven (7) days prior to 
the date of the hearing before the Board and such notification shall set forth the date, 
time, and place for the hearing before the Millard Board of Educationor committee. 

F. The parties may, by mutual written agreement, extend the time for hearing or final 
determination. 

G .  The student, parent(s), and/or guardian(s) shall have the right to be represented by legal 
counsel and shall have the opportunity to present such evidence that is material to the 
issue or issues stated in tile appeal. 

H. The hearing shall be conducted in closed session and in accordance with the student 
privacy laws unless the student, parent(s), and/or guardian(s) shall request, in writing, 
that the hearing be held in open session. Any formal actioti of the Millard Board of 
Education pr coninlittee shall be taken in closed session unless such proceeding was 
requested by the student, parent(s), or guardian(s) to be held in open session. 

I. The decision of the Millard Board of E d u c a t i o n ~ s h a l l  be by vote of a 
majority of the members of the Millard Board of Education or conlmittee and the Millara 
Board of Education or shall reduce its findings and decision to writing and 
provide the written findings and decision to the student, parent@), andlor guardian(s) 
within ten (10) days of the hearing. W h e n u m W i n e  such proceedings the Millard 
Board of Education or committee. shall he exercisinp a iudicial function and decidinp a 
dispute of a- 

, . .  

VI. Graduation 

Upon successful colnplction of the required credits and asscssnlcnls, a s tude~~t  shall bc eligible for 
a graduation diplonta fro111 the .Millard Public Schools. 

VII. Annual Review 

This Rule shall he reviewed annually. 

Related Policies and Rules: 6301P, 6301R1,6315P, 6315R1,6320P 

Rules Approved: 
Revised: Dec. 5, 1983; Dec. 17, 1990, May 17, 1999; Oct. 18, 1999; July 31,2000; 

March 4,2002; July 21,2003; June 21,2004; June 6,2005; June 5,2006; 
June 4.2007 

Millard Public Schools 

10



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment 
Students' Requirements for Senior High School Graduation: 
International Baccalaureate Diploma Program 

I. Credits -- A minimum of 225 credits is required for graduation. 

11. In addition to 225 credits required for graduation, students must also successfully meet 
the Essential Learner Outcome assessment score requirements in Reading, Writing, 
viathematics, Science, and Social Studies. 

111. Each student's International Baccalaureate (IB) Diploma program shall include the 
courses of study as outlined in Rule 6320.1 with such adjustments (additions or 
substitutions) to the programs and courses as listed below. Such adjustments are made to 
avoid duplication in the program of study required for IB students. 

Millard Public Schools' Graduation Reauirenient 

English: Selected Electives (5 credits) 

English: Oral Communications (5 Credits) 

Social Studies: World Geography (10 Credits) 

Social Studies: World Perspective Course Options 

Electives: Human Resources Course Options 

Science: Physical Science Course Options 

Science: Life Science Course Options 

International Baccalaureate Program . . 
ltrons/Substitutions 

Substitute IB English 12 (10credits) 

Substitute Imbedded Oral Assessments found in Language 
Al,  Language B and Theory of Knowledge I & I1 
requirements 

Substitute IB 20th Century World History Topics (I0 credits) 

Add 1B History of Americas (10 credits) to course options 

Add 1B Theory of Knowledge (~nax.  5 Credits) 

Add IB Chemistry (10 credits) and IB Pl~ysics (10 credits) 
Introduction to Chemistry and Physics (10 credits) 

Add IB Biology ( I0  credits) 

Health Education: Everyday Living will be available for enrollment during grades 9-12 
for IB students. Students waived out of Everyday Living must pick an additional Human 
Resources course. The Theory of Knowledge course can only meet the Human Resource 
Course 5 credit requirement. 

JV. These adjustments are only applicable to students enrolled in the full International 
Baccalaureate Diploma program with intentions to test for and secure the IB Diploma. 

Related Policies & Rules: 6320P 

Approved: April 16,2001 
Revised: August 4,2003 
Revised: June 5,2006; June 4,2007 

Millard Public Schools 
Omaha, NE 

11



12



MPSOMAHA 

Millard Personal Learning Plan: 

Please note: You can enter more than one goal per grade level by 

Long-term Goal 

Goals- What long-term SMART goal(s) do I plan to accomplish? 

12th grade 

, .. :) .... 
:L' 3 

Long-term Goal 

Goals- What long-term SMART goal(s) do I plan to accomplish? 

........ ..... . -~ ;$ 

'I 

Long-term Goal 

Goals- What long-term SMART goal@) do I plan to accomplish? 

10th grade 

Long-term Goal 

13



MPSOMAHA Page 2 of 3 

Goals- What long-term SMART goal@) do I plan to acconlplish? 

- ' I  grade H 

Short-term Gc ... 

Goals- What short-term SMART goal@) do I plan to accomplist 

th grade b 
...~ ~ .~. .~. .  ~ ~. 

I 

Ev~dence of complet~on or progress toward accompl~sh~ng SMART goals 

12th grade 

Short-term Goal 

Goals- What short-term SMART goal@) do I plan to accomplish? 

11th grade 

1 

Ev~dence of completton or progress toward accompl~shlng SMART goals 

11th grade 

Short-term Goal 

Goals- What short-term SMART goal@) do I plan to accompl~sh? 

10th grade 

14



MPSOMAHA Page 3 of 3 

Evidence of completion or progress toward accomplishing SMART goals 

10th grade rn 
- . . - .- 

1 ; ~~~1 

ort-term Goal 

als- What st rm SMART goal@) do I plan to accomplish? 

Evidence of completion or progress toward accomplishing SMART goals: 

9th grade rn 
. .... . . ~ ~  

Millard Public Schools (MPS) 
Personal Learning Plan 
Copyright 2006 

15



MPSOMAHA Page 1 of 4 

Beginning Progressing Proficient Advanced 
READINESS FOR WORK 

Millard Personal Learning Plan: 
Personal Profile 

, - 

1. I 
demonstrate 

0 0 

- - 

the ability to 
manage time. 

Resume ~ You can save this page at any time by clicking the Save button at the 

Goals bottom of the page. To update a saved page, click on its link on the left- 

,Add Long-Terln Goal side navigation. Your previously entered data will appear. You may add 
or revise any of the fields and click the Save button to save your 

. . 
FeWSWRS. 

Contents 
>Personal Profile You may also Print your data at any time by first downloading the page 

Planning as a PDF: Download PDF (Last year's PDFS) >CareerlCollege 

Life Skills 

[Logout] The Life Skills survey is completed by 10th graders in homeroom or 
advisement. Students identify whether they are beginning, progressing, 
proficient. or advanced in the sixteen Life Skills. Success in a career 
means being ready for work, ready for life-long learning, and being a 
good citizen. It is important to practice these life skills every day. 

2. 1 
demonstrate 

0 0 
the ability to 
follow 
directions. 

3. 1 solve 
problems by 

@' 
processing 
information 
and making 
decisions as 
appropriate. 

4 .1  have 
developed the 

0 0 
ability to work 
with others to 
accomplish 
taskslgoais. 

5. 1 
demonstrate 

0 0 
essential 
knowledge of 
good work 
habits. 

6. 1 
demonstrate 

@ 
responsibility. 

16



MPSOMAHA Page 2 of 4 

READINESS FOR LIFE-LONG LEARNING 
7. 1 
demonstrate 

0 0 0 
the ability to 
set and pursue 
short-term and 
lona-term 

8. 1 obtain, 0 0 
oraanize and 
ev;?luate 
information 

9.1 have 
developed the 
attribute of 
integrity. 
10.1 have 
developed the 
attribute of 
self-discipline. 
11. I have 
developed the 
attribute of a 
positive 
attitude. 
12.1 have 
developed the 
attribute of 
perseverance. 
CITIZENSHIP 
13. 1 
participate in 
community 
and/or school 
organizations. 
14. l respect 
diversity. 
15. 1 respect 
the rights of 
others. 
16. 1 treat 
others in a 
considerate 
and non- 
demeaning 
manner. 

According to my Llfe Sk~lls survey, I need to ~mprovelwork on 

I can use the descriptions of the Life Skill of 
Readiness for Work .a to improve by doing the .. .... 

following: 

17



MPSOMAHA Page 3 of 4 

Developmental Asset Profile 
The Developmental Asset Profile (DAP) survey identifies a student's 
Dattern of asset strengths and concerns in the eight Asset categories of 
s~pport emPomernieil 00-naares and expectaions conslr~ci de ..se of 

T m e  c o m n i ' l m T n t t b l e ~ p m ; m I ~ ~ m p e t e n c ~ e s - a n o -  
positive identity. 

According to my Developmental Asset Proflle (DAP) survey my top 3 
hs i r e  

According to my developmental Asset Profile (DAP) survey 2 categories 
that I can improve are: 

In each of those 2 categories, these are 3 things that I can do to build 
assets in my life: 

Learning Styles 
We all learn in different ways. Some like to read and see what they are 
learnina. (Visuall Some like to listen. (Auditorv) Others prefer to use their > . 
nanos (Tact e or X nesrnel c) Sonle peop e worn oesl alone. others 
Drefer aro..ps Some peop e can earn in a nosy env.ronmen1 otners - .  . . 
need a quiet space. 

From the Learning Styles Profile, I have learned: 

I w~l l  use this lnformatlon to 

True ColorsTM 
A way of discovering one's strengths, and understanding human 
behavior, True Colors translates four personality types into colors - blue, 
gold, green and orange. Most students do the True Colors activities in 
10th grade. 

From True Colors, I have learned 

-- 1 

18



MPSOMAHA Page 4 of 4 

I will use this information to: 

Volunteer Work 
Volunteer work is providing a service for an individual or organization. 
Involvement in volunteer work may help you identify your interests and 
career goals. A list of organizations and contact information is available at 
http:llwww.mpsomaha.org/mpslindex.cfm? 
action=202&bt=8.68Rbt1=2l&id=193. 

From my volunteer work, I have learned: 

I will use this information to: 

I will use this information to: 

Gallup StrengthsFinderO 
The Gallup StrengthsFinder is an instrument designed to identiv an 
individual's "signature strengths" to allow the person to focus on his or 
herstrengths. 

-: 

From the Gallup StrengthsFinder, I have learned that my five signature 
strengths are: 

-- -- 
- - 

-- - 

Millard Public Schools (MPS) Web Design 
Personal Learning Plan MPS & Educational Service Unit #3 
Copyrighl2006 Copyright 2006 

19



MPSOMAHA Page 1 of 5 

Millard Personal Learning Plan: 
Academic Planning 

Resume You can save this page at any time by clicking the Save button at the 

Goals bottom of the page. To update a saved page, click on its link on the left- 

,Add Long-Term side navigation. Your previously entered data will appear. You may add 

Short-Tarm or revise any of the fields and click the Save button to save your 

C-onntent 
>Personal Profile You may also Print your data at any time by first downloading the page 
'Academic 'Ianning as a PDF Download PDF (Last year's PDFs) >CareerlCollege 

[Logout] 
Diploma Path 
Regular 

Liberal Arts 
Commended 
Distinguished 

Specialty 
Commended 
D~stinguished 

I have chosen the diploma path 

What do I need to do to meet this diploma path? (completed at the 
beginning of the year) 

Course Reflections 
When answering the following questions think about the courses that you 
completed in the previous semester or year 

In what courses was I the most successful and why? 

9th. 

20



MPSOMAHA Page 2 of 5 

~- p ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ - ~ -  ~ ~ . ~ ~ .  ~ .. .....-...... ........................ .......- 

.... ...... . 

iat teaching strategies worked best for me in courses that I was 
LeSSf~117 - -  - 

....................... 

. . . . . .  . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . .  ~. , 

In what courses did I struggle the most and why? 
. .  < _ . I  
, S '  2 

What strategies can I use to improve my learning? 
9th: . , 

' C 
: : i . ~ 

SENIOR ONLY REFLECT ON AND RESPOND 
I will apply what I have learned about my success or struggles in courses 
!ofu!ure learning envL~~.m.s.nLs_by, - I 

AP Exams ... - ........ 
At !he conc "son of an Aovanceo Placement (AP, co4rse, sadents are 
encourage0 to tafie tne correspond ng AP Exam AP Exams are two- to 

21



MPSOMAHA Page 3 of 5 

three-hour exams, given in May, made up of multiple-choice and free- 
response (essay) questions. There is a fee for the exam. What pre- 
requisites are needed for the AP coursesin which I am most interested? 

-:! 

- .- - - - ~ -- ......... . . .  - .  - ~ - -  -. ~ - 
Testing Information 
ELOs: Met Not Met Not Taken 

"'h Re2 C - 

!r percentile) ~ -~-  
! 

Language L - ,' .lence :-.- ......... Social 

ra No\ t e r  percentile) ~~ ~ ~~ . ~ ~~ ~~ 

~ ~~ ~ - 

. . .  Language ..... ..... 

Science - Math .~ ~ Social 

Studies 

PLAN 
........... 

English i ' 
. ~ ~ ~ . ,  ..................... 

Math I I . i 
................... 

Reading ! 
I -1 

Science 
Reasoning ? . 

..... 
Composite 

ACT Predictor 
......-.... I 

PSAT ............ - 
I 

Critical Reading .......................... 

! 
Wrltlng . _ 

Select~on Index (Sum of 3 scores) 

22



MPSOMAHA Page 4 of 5 

SAT 

Critical 
Reading .............................. .' 

.......... - ..... 
Math , 

-~ 
j 

Writing 1 

Standardized Tests and Scores 
What do my scores predlct about my performance on future standardlzed 
tests? 

What changes can I make to Improve my test performance? 

Are my long-term goals realistic based on my standardlzed test scores? 

From the PLAN test results, the following career areas were identified 
..... from the World of Work - map-tbha.!ould .. be of interest to me: 

Dual Enrollment 
Opportunities exist for students to earn college credit for identified 
courses at their high school. Check the Curriculum Handbook for those 
options. 

From my lnvesttgatton of Dual Enrollment, I have learned 

I will use this information to: 

~~~ -~ ~~~ ~ ~~ ~ ~~~~~ ~~ ~~~~~ - ~~~~~~~~ 

23



MPSOMAHA Page 5 of 5 

Counselor Interview 
Students may make an appointment with their school counSel0r to be 
sure they have completed all the requirements for graduation and post- 
high school plans. 

From thls lntervlew wlth my counselor, I have learned 

.. ~~ 

I will use this information to: 

iiliard PuWic Schools (MPS) 
ersonai Learning Plan 
opyrighl2006 

Web Design 
MPS R Educational Service Unil#3 

Copyright 2006 

24



MPSOMAHA Page 1 of 6 

Millard Personal Learning Plan: 
Career/CoIlege Exploration 

-- 

>Personal Profile You may also Print your data at any time by first downloading the page 
'Academic 'Ianning as a PDF: Download PDF (Last year's PDFs) >CareerlCollege 

Mock Interviews 
Mock interviews are a required activity of the Oral Communications 
course (speech, debate, and forensics). Students select a career in 
which they are interested. Community members conduct an interview 
and score the student on a rubric. 

What information about myself did I gain from the interview that will help 
me prepare for the future? 

What parts of the interview process did I find the lnost challenging? 

What will I do to try to make these aspects of the interview less 
challenging? 

Looking back at my preparation for the interview as well as the actual 
interview process, what did I learn about the work world? 

How can I use the lessons that I have learned from the intewiew process 
to get closer to achieving my short and long-term goals? 

Nebraska Career Connections 
There are three assessments available on the Nebraska Career 
Connections site. 

Kuder Career Search with Person Match. 
This is an inventory that asks students to respond to 60 sets of items. 
Each set lists three possible work activities and asks students to put 
them in the order of their preference for doing them. After all items are 
completed. the student receives a score report. 

25



MPSOMAHA Page 2 of 6 

The Kuder Skllls Assessment 
This is an assessment in which students are asked to rate each of 180 
work tasks at one of four levels. A report is created that identifies student 
skills for each career cluster. 

I st-dents complete ooln tne 4-aer Career Searcn wih Person Matcn 
ano ine Xuaer SA s Assessmenr a como neo summary repon w be 
created. 

- - -  - T h e f  upePs-WorkValueplnventory 
This inventory asks students questions that help them determine how 
important each of 12 values is to them in work. Then, these values can 
be used to identify career specialties that may help attain 'hnco ss=laass. 
From these assessments and inventories, I have learned 

I w~l l  use th~s lnformatlon to. 

CareerlCollege Speakers 
Students may have the opportunity to hear career speakers from the 
community or presentations from college representatives. I have attended 
the following speaker's presentations: 

Name I Representing 

From th~s speaker I have learned 

I will use this information to: 

Explorer Post Activities 
Exolorer Posts are regular meetlnas deslaned to give students an 
opport,n t y  to galn f rit-hana exp&encen manycareer areas 
nforniat on s ava lao e n tne g~ oance off ce 

Explorer Post Sponsor Date 

From this Explorer Post experience, I have learned: Need text box 

I will use this information to: Need text box 

Job Shadows 
Students shadow an adult employee to observe "first hand  what a job is 
like. Students may inquire about working conditions, educational 
preparation, salary, and/or benefits. 

26



MPSOMAHA Page 3 of 6 

From this job shadow, I have learned: 

I will use this information to: -.... 
.- - ... ~- . -~ . - - ... .- 

I..... ...... 

Cbllege Fair 
The Omaha College Fatr 1s typically the last Sunday of October. 
Hundreds of college representatlves from across the country are 
ava~lable it informally wlth prospective students and the~r parent 

College f 

From the ge Fair, I have learned: Need text box- 

~~ ~~ ~ 

. . . . . . . .  I will use this information to: Need text box 
I 

Career FairlTech Expo 
Career Fairs are held so students can visit informally with employees 
aoo..r careers tnar general y req..!re tuo years or less of fornla tra n ng 
beyond n gn scnool Represental ves of rne traaes an0 two-year co eges 
also attend the Career Fair 

Representatives Visited: ...... ..... 

.. ........ 

............ From the Career FairlTech Expo, I have learneg--. 
i 

Internships 
An internship integrates study with planned and supervised career-relater 
work experience. Students are involved as non-paid 'employees' 
receiving credit for work experience while also enrolled in specific high 
school courses. 

From this internship experience, I have learned: 

7 1  
: : j ...... .- .................................... - -  - -- ........ 

27



MPSOMAHA Page 4 of 6 

I will use this information to: 

College Visits 
.- - - ~ -.-- - -  ~~~ - Students are encouraged to visit the campuses of schools that they are 

=-riously considering attending. See a counselor or refer to the Post- 
condary Planning Guide for tips to make the campus visit meaningful. 

. . .  ~m my college visits,l~have learned: -- 

I wm use thls lntormatlon to 

ASVAB (Armed Services Vocational Aptitude Battery) 
Tne ASVAB (Armeo Serv ces Vocat onal Apt t..de Ballery) .s an nteresl 
nvenlory too aevelopeo ana manta ned by the Department of Defense 
St..aenls are prov ded w in scores on e gnt ma via-a tests wn ch 
s .aaest m lary occ,pat ons ano s m arc  v an occ..pat ons tnteres! in 

serviceis nota requirement for taking this inventory. See your 
counselor if you are interested. 

. . . . . . . .  From the ASVAB, I have  learned:^^ ~- - 
f 7, 

. ~ .:I 
. . '1 

.... ..--. 2 

I will use this information to: 
. ---.--, 'i 

: 
.............................. s. ... 

lnde~endent Studv 
A stident may be eiigible to complete coursework independently, under 
the supervision of a teacher, after he or she has completed all available 
coursework in that curricular area. Curricular areas in which I completed 
an independent study 

From this independent study, I have learned: 

. ~~ . . .  - -  .. 2 3  

I will use this information tol 
1 

Career Academies 
Metro~olitan Communitv Colleae and other ~ o s t - s e ~ ~ n d a l ' ~  institutions 
provide area high school juniok and seniors with opportunities to explore 
various career fields through their Career Academies. Academy 
programs consist of collegk-level course work and in some programs, on- 
the-job-work experience. Contact the guidance office for more 
information. 

Academies in which I participated: 

. ~.~ .... 

From this academy, I have learned: 

28



MPSOMAHA 

I will use thls information tor-- 

OccupationaLSkills 
Students gain work experlence In a part-time job, which 1s overseen by a 
staff member 

Work Experien Date: 

From thls worK experlence, I have learned 
1 

Personal Resume 
An up-to-date resume will help you complete applications, and give 
information to recommendation writers, and prospective employers. The 
resume should include academic information, leadership positions, 
membership in activities, honors and awards, work experience, hobbies, 
and interests. See an example in the Post -Secondary Planning Guide. 

My resume prov~des a good descr~pt~on of who I am because 

Is my resume complete? 

Personal Budget 
Heading to post-secondaly school or entering the workforce may be the 
first time you will live on your own and handle your own finances. If you 
plan ahead and take charge of your finances, the skills you learn will 
benefit you for the rest of your life. 

From plannlng a personal budget. I have learned 
I 

i ............................. .- .... - 2 ~ ~ - .  

I will use this information to;, . . . . . . . . . . . .  . .  .... 

.. ............ 

College and Financial Aid Nights 
Programs are presented to students and their parents about college 
planning, including college selection, entrance exams, application 
process, admission requirements, scholarships, and financial aid. 

F o m  College and Financial Aid Nights,.lh,ave..!earned: , . 
~ q 

I 

29



MPSOMAHA 

I will use thisinformation to; 7 

.- -- - -- Funding Sources for Post Secondary Education 
h n e y  is available for post-secondary costs in three primary ways: 

leral grants, loans, and scholarships. Information is available from 

ide, and the counseling home-page to begin your seal 

' ! se  searches, I ha\ ~ '~ ~ ~~ ~ ~' 

I will use this information to: 

FAFSA . . . . -. . 
Free Application for Federal Student Aid is available in November and 
reauired to be considered for financial aid. Parents and students should 
cotiplete the FAFSA as soon as possible after January 1st of the senior 
year. In order to complete the FAFSA on-line you must apply for a PIN at 
http:llwww.fafsa.ed.gov. 

From completing the FAFSA, I have learned: - 
.j .j , 

1 
. . 1 

I will use this information to: 

Millard Public Schools (MPS) 
Personal Learning Plan 
Copyright 2006 

Web Oesigr 
MPS & Educational Service Unit #: 

Copyright 200e 

30



shstest 

Address: 0 
Pliorre: 0 

E-Mail: 

High Schools Atterrded: 

GPA: 

Class Rarrk 

Ciirrerrt Grade Level: 12 

PSA T: 

ACT: 

SAT: 

Acadesric Horrors /Awards / Sclrolarships 

Staderrt Acfivities 

Hobbies 

Vohrrrteer Experience 

31



nspecting Caro brings Christmas cheer to MSHS 
LIL i IIUY 

Editor-in-Chief 

Theatre-goers who can't listen to Tiny Tim's beatific 
announcement "God bless us, everyone!" without wanting 
to gouge their eyes out should have found lnspecting Carol, 
Millard South's first dramatic show of the season, a refresh- 
ing change. 

Inspecting Carol, performed Sept. 14,15, and 16, is a 
wacky spoof of Charles Dicken's beloved tale, A Christmas 
Carol. The less-than-talented and more-than-zany group 
of actors in a small-town community playhouse are in the 

Sophomore Rebecca Pfl~g and senior order to earn the 
Christianne BahweI16ght about-the a- .- th, tmupe 

nancial problems of their theatre. Photo favorably 
by Allison Mellick impress the in- 

spector coming 
to watch their performance of A Christmas Carol. With 
only a few days left to prepare, the actors desperately at- 
tempt to scrape together a credible performance and save 
their theater. Needless to say, everything that could go 
wrong in this comedy of errors does go wrong. 

The play has a cast of only 19, but depends heavily on 
the core strength of its players. Director Robyn Baker was 
looking forward to the show's debut; she believes the cast 
of this show has a lot of potential. 

"All of the auditions were good, with lots of new peo- 

Stackhouse, and Emily Hendrix from lnspecting Carol workout the kinks in dress rehearsal. Photo by Dana Stochl 

He, which is $ce to see, and lotshof old people*who h$a.* 
grown a lot'over the ye ar... but the casting was very clear by 
the end of auditions," she said. 

Baker describes every cast member as having excel- 
lent instincts, comedic timing, and ability to play off other 
actors. 

The cast included sophomore Rebecca Pflug as "di- 
rector" Zorah Bloch, seniors Kyle Grant as Sidney Carlson, 
Camilla Cusani as Dorothy Hapgood, Jeff Tritz as Larry 
Vauxhall, Ryan Hanson as Phil Hewitt, KC Onumbu as 
Wanda Parsons, and Christianne Bakewell as Karen Emery, 

. . "it's hard to do a and 
e It"T 
like buildiig magic tricks, really:' said Baker. 

The show featured quite a few of these "magic tricks:' 
including a functioning malfunctioning trapdoor and a 
pop-up projectile gravestone. 

Senior Morgan Coffey, stage manager, was less con- 
gerned about the "tech than the ensemble. 

"There wasn't much time to rehearse ... I just hope that 
we can learn to act like an ensemble and keep our stress 
levels down ... especially mine:' Coffey said. 

among others. 
The technological support for the show may have 

seemed slipshod, but in reality was fairly difficult. 

Persona Learning P ans prove beneficia to students 
Sam Bevington 
staff ~ e ~ i r t e r  

While dashing through the halls on the way to PRIDE 
Time, all that can be heard is bickering about the not-so- 
enjoyable personal learning plans, also known as PLPs. 
Fortunately for this years Millard South students, the PLPs 
seem to have more of a purpose than previous years: 

When completed, they make a resume for your high 
school career and save information, which are very conve- 
nient features. Terra Nova scores are pretty tough to re- 
member and now you don't have to. PSAT, ACT, and SAT 
scores can all be saved as well. Mrs. N@er is a PRIDE Time 
teacher and deals with these things everyday so she can ap- 

preciate the virtual memory bank. You can enter in yearly 
awards and honors, GPA and class rank; all of the things 
colleges, universities and employers will want to know. Up- 
perclassmen still have a hard time recalling information 
from freshman year to put into their PLP page. 

66 
$9 

It seriously takes me 
less than five minutes. 

-1UNIOR NICOLE CHASE 

"It's still tough for the juniors and seniors who are 
stepping into this in the middle," Nyffler said. 

Personal Learning Plans are a graduation requirement 

this year. In order to graduate, Millard South students have 
to have a short-term and long-term goal typed along woth 
at least eight things done out of a list of items ranging from 
a mock interview to volunteer hours. The new PLPs have 
changed for the better. Students can now store informa- 
tion online instead of in their memory banks. There's not 
much need for complaining this year and junior Nicole 
Chase hasn't been. She is one of many dealing with PLPs as 
a member of Mrs. Harrills PRIDE Time. Students can get it 
done, over with, and not think about it for months. 

"It seriously takes me less than five minutes," Chase 
said. 

Millard South students can take a fabulous, new sigh 
of relief when strutting to PRIDE Time. 

Facebook Varsity Invasion 
and Sudan Football Review 

pge 3 

32



a r e a t h a m a t  
ff assive Drug Dog -J 

Policy Changes 

Task Force Recommendations 

- 

r Traini 
School-Boot Camp 

Ban All Outside Containers 
Legislation 
No Open Campus 
Cell Phone/Telecommunication (ex. MySpace.com) 
Investigate the supplier 
Safe Homes Parent NetworkICreate Parent Partnership 
Book Bag Policy 
Student IDS 
Other 

33



The Metro Schools

Learning Community

LB 641

34



Learning Community/Timeline
1. September 2007 – Commissioner of Education certifies 

Learning Community (LC)
2. November 2007 - Election Commissioners (Douglas and 

Sarpy) divide territory into 6 districts (Compact, contiguous, 
substantially equal in population).

3. November 2008 – 12 LC board members are elected (no 
Primary election, limited voting)

4. November 2008 – Board members are appointed to LC
5. January 2009 – Commissioner will convene a meeting of 

the LC Coordinating Council
6. 2009-2010 – LC can levy up to $.05
7. 2009-2010 – the common tax levy is in place

35



School District Boundaries

“The boundaries of all school 
districts …shall remain as depicted 
on a map …as of March 1, 2006.”

School may reorganize if both boards of education agree

36



Finance Implications
1. $.93 - $.95 – Common Levy distributed based on 

formula needs
2. $.02 – Common building fund distributed based on 

student enrollment
3. $.08 district discretionary general or building fund levy
4. $.00-$.05 – Levy for elementary learning center facilities 

and up to 50% of the estimated costs for capital projects 
approved by the LCCC

5. Five year phase out of district-based TEEOSA as they 
move to the learning community-based TEEOSA

37



School Districts’ Powers

• Implement district curriculum
• Develop the district budget
• Develop guidelines for in-district transfers
• Develop poverty plan
• Develop ELL plan
• Levy up to $.08 for their own general or building 

fund
• Set a maximum building capacity based on LCCC 

standards

38



Learning Community Coordinating 
Council (LCCC)

• Levy and distribute a common levy and levy for capital 
projects

• Establish procedures to set a maximum capacity for each 
building 

• Collect, analyze and report data
• Approve focus schools and poverty plans
• Adopt, approve and implement diversity plans
• Administer open enrollment
• Conduct school fairs and receive community input
• Develop reorganization plans
• Establish and administer elementary  learning centers 

through achievement sub councils
• Assist parents in dispute resolution

39



Powers of the Learning Community 
Achievement Council

(6 sub-councils each with 3 members)

• Paid for official meetings up to $12,000
• Develop a diversity plan for election district
• Administer elementary learning centers in 

cooperation with and executive director
• Review and approve poverty plans
• Review and approve limited English plans
• Receive community input
• Hold public hearings

40



Diversity
A diversity plan is developed by the achievement 

sub-council for each territory in its election district
Diversity plan goal is to annually increase the 

socioeconomic diversity of enrollment at each 
grade level in each school until it reflects the 
average of the learning community.

Each LCCC with member districts shall develop and 
administer a diversity plan to bring about diverse 
enrollments subject to limitations .

• Zone limitations to allow students to access several schools 
other than their home attendance area

• Capacity pursuant to LCCC criteria 
Free  transportation for kids who improve diversity

41



Focus Schools
A focus school is designed to attract a more economically and 

culturally diverse student body.
A magnet pathway offers coordinated elementary, middle and 

high school programs that are unique and that have specific 
learning goals in addition to standard curriculum.

• Students will be admitted to focus schools on this basis:
– Students who receive free or reduced-priced lunch
– Students who do not qualify for free or reduced-priced lunch

• Receiving districts will receive a 10% allowance increase 
for all children attending focus schools.

42



Open and Option Enrollment

• “Option enrollment,” is for students from 
outside the learning community (Blair to 
Millard)

• “Open enrollment,” is for student 
transferring to schools within the Learning 
Community (Elkhorn to Millard)

• In-district transfers are at the discretion of 
the school district

43



Elementary Learning Centers
• Administered by an executive director
• At least one center for each 25 schools with 35% 

poverty or higher (located in an area of high 
poverty)

• Programs include
– Summer school, extended-school-day and school-

year programs coordinated with programs offered in 
the schools

– Literacy centers for children and parents
– Computer labs
– Tutors and mentors for students
– Services for transient students

44



Elementary Learning Centers (continued)

– Attendance advocates to assist with issues that 
contribute to truancy 

– Transportation for truant students
– English classes for parents and other family members
– Health and mental health services
– Childcare for children of parents working on literacy 

or working with their own children on academic skills
– Nutritional services for families working on skills at 

the center
– Transportation for participating families
– Distribution of clothing and school supplies
– Information on other resources to assist participating 

families
– Interpreter services for educational needs

45



Poverty Plans
• Must complete a poverty plan to get additional funding
• A 10 - 30% allowance per student if poverty levels are 

between 5% and 30%.  
• NDE determines if you meet your plan

– Can lose 50% of funding if NDE determines you did not meet the 
required elements.

• Poverty Plans will address
– Attendance, mobility, parental involvement, class size, teaching

time
– Access to early childhood education, summer school, and social 

workers
– Mentoring and professional development for teachers
– Coordination with elementary learning centers
– Must include an evaluation component

46



Free Transportation

• If a student is transferring due to open enrollment
• If a student qualifies for free or reduced priced 

lunch and lives more than one mile from the 
school to which he or she transfers

• If the student contributes to the socioeconomic 
diversity

• If the student is attending a focus or magnet 
school and lives more than one mile from the 
school

47



Other Requirements

• NDE  Commissioner will appoint a Student 
Achievement Coordinator with a background and 
training in instruction for students in poverty.

• Children who attend programs in Summer school 
for reading and math will receive an allowance 
equal to .25 times the number of students.

• ESU will  continue as before except that:
– Core services priority funding for staff development to 

improve the achievement of students in poverty

48



Notice of Request for Proposal

for

Management of a

School Food Service Program

(Sponsor Number and Name)

(Contractor Name)

(Date Issued)

49



Notice of Request for Proposal
for

Management of a School Food Service Program

invites written proposals from qualified companies for management of the school system's food
service operation, which includes the programs, checked below:

G School Breakfast Program
G National School Lunch Program
G After School Care Snack Program
G Special Milk Program
G Summer Food Service Program as described in Exhibit A, 13, A.
G Child and Adult Care Food Program as described in Exhibit A, 13, B.
G Catering services as described in Exhibit A, 13, C.
G Concessions as described in Exhibit A, 13, D.
G A la carte items/meals
GOther:

The successful company shall be required to enter into a contract that incorporates this
Request for Proposal (RFP), including all of its exhibits, and the contractor's Proposal.
Significant general contract terms and conditions will include, but are not limited to
those in this RFP.

For guidance on completing and submitting a proposal, refer to pages 4 through 6 of this RFP.

50



Table of Contents

Reference Section
Page

I. Background of Requestor................................................................................................4

II. Purpose of Request.........................................................................................................4

III. Time Schedule ................................................................................................................4

IV. Instructions .....................................................................................................................5

V. Selection Criteria .............................................................................................................7

VI. Basic Program Information..............................................................................................7

VII. General Requirements ....................................................................................................8

VIII. Food Service Operations Requirements..........................................................................9

IX. Miscellaneous Sponsor Rights ......................................................................................11

X. Accountability Requirements .........................................................................................12

XI. Fee Structure ................................................................................................................13

XII. Licenses, Permits and Taxes ........................................................................................19

XIII. Insurance and Indemnification.......................................................................................19

XIV. Performance Security....................................................................................................21

XV. Term of Contract ...........................................................................................................21

51



Table of Contents, continued

Sponsor Exhibits

Exhibit A Sponsor Profile

Exhibit B 21-Day Cycle Menu

Exhibit C Purchasing Specification

Exhibit D Participation for Prior School Year (__________)

Exhibit E Price Schedule for Current School Year (__________)

Exhibit F Financial Operating Statements for Prior Three Years

Exhibit G Division of Costs for the Food Service Program

Exhibit H Division of Responsibilities for the Food Service Program

Exhibit I Sponsor Policies Impacting the Food Service Program

Contractor Exhibits

Exhibit J Contractor Profile

Exhibit K Certificate of Independent Price Determination

Exhibit L Miscellaneous Contractor Proposals

Exhibit M Annual Budget Projection

Exhibit N Food Service Management Company Fee Proposal

Exhibit O Personnel and Staffing Plans

Exhibit P Plans to Increase Program Participation

52



Request for Proposal
for

Management of a School Food Service Program

I. Background of Requestor

MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT, (hereinafter referred to as the SPONSOR)
administers the U.S. Department of Agriculture's Child Nutrition Programs. The company
issuing the proposal, under these specifications, will be hereinafter referred to as the
CONTRACTOR. The contract will be between the CONTRACTOR and the SPONSOR.
Information about the SPONSOR's organization is provided in Exhibit A - Sponsor Profile.

The Nutrition Services of the Nebraska Department of Education, hereinafter referred to as
NDE, administers Child Nutrition Programs at the State level. Federal regulations require
the aforementioned contract to be approved by NDE prior to implementation.

II. Purpose of Request

The purpose of this solicitation is to provide for the management of the SPONSOR's school
food service operation. The CONTRACTOR will assume responsibility for the efficient
management of the food service program including the responsibilities specified in Exhibit
H, Division of Responsibilities for the Food Service Program.

III. Time Schedule

The SPONSOR will use the following time line to select a food service management
company:

Date/Time Task
Allow 3-4 weeks RFP submitted to Nutrition Services for

approval
At least 60 days for solicitation period Advertise Request for Proposal
2-3 weeks after advertising proposal Pre-proposal Conference, Visitation- (optional)
Date stated in RFP Deadline and Proposal Opening
After proposal opening and scoring Contract Negotiation- Board approval
Allow 3-4 weeks Contract sent to Nutrition Services for approval
Before school starts and meals are claimed Contract signed by Authorized Representative

and FSMC Representative

53



IV. Instructions

A. Copies of the Request for Proposal may be obtained by writing or calling:

No oral interpretation will be made to any FSMC as to the meaning of the RFP. Any oral
communication will be considered unofficial and non-binding on the SPONSOR.
Unauthorized contact by the FSMC with other SPONSOR employees or SPONSOR
Board Member regarding the RFP may result in disqualification. Each request for such
interpretation shall be made in writing to the SPONSOR. Every interpretation made to
the FSMC will be in the form of an addendum, mailed to each FSMC, and will be on file
at the SPONSOR. All such addenda shall become part of the final contract and FSMC
shall be bound by such addenda.

B. Six (6) copies of the proposal must be submitted in sealed envelopes or containers
marked plainly and prominently as follows:

Proposal for Management of a School Food Service Program for

_____________________________________________________________________.

C. The proposal should be addressed to: Kenneth J. Fossen, Associate

Superintendent, Millard Public Schools, 5606 So. 147th Street, Omaha, Nebraska

68137.

Proposals are due no later than PM, , 200 .
No proposals will be accepted after the above due date and time.

In accordance with competitive purchasing procedures the proposals will be opened
publicly. Proposals will be opened at PM, , 200 ..

F. The SPONSOR reserves the right to reject any and all proposals and to waive any
"informalities" in the proposals received whenever such action, rejection or waiver is in
its best interests.

G. The SPONSOR reserves the right to solicit best and final offers from the three most
responsive proposers after a joint conference with these proposers.

H. A pre-proposal conference to review the contents of the Request for Proposal and to
arrange inspection visits will be held on , 200 , at AM at

.

54



IV. Instructions, continued

I. The SPONSOR will accept no pleas of ignorance regarding any item in this contract as
a basis for any claim by the CONTRACTOR for extra charges or fees. To be
considered, each contractor must submit a complete response to this Request for
Proposals using the forms provided. Any silence, absence or omission from the
contract document specifications concerning any point shall be regarded as meaning
that only the best commercial practices are to prevail, and that only materials (food,
supplies, etc.) and workmanship of a quality that would normally be specified by the
SPONSOR are to be used.

J. Please ensure that all of the following required exhibits are completed and included in
your proposal package.

Exhibit J Contractor Profile

Exhibit K Certificate of Independent Price Determination

Exhibit L Miscellaneous Contractor Proposals

Exhibit M Annual Budget Projection

Exhibit N Food Service Management Company Fee Proposal

Exhibit O Personnel and Staffing Plans

Exhibit P Plans to Increase Program Participation

Exhibit Q Certificate Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary
Exclusion

Exhibit R Certificate Regarding Lobbying

Exhibit S Disclosure of Lobbying Activities

Performance Security as specified in Section XIV

55



V. Selection Criteria

The final selection will be subject to review and approval by the SPONSOR's evaluation
team. The criteria listed below may be used in the development of a scoring system that

will
be used to evaluate each proposal.

Weight Criteria

_______ points
Qualifications and experience of management team as presented in Exhibit
J

_______ points
Quality of food service

_______ points
Adequacy of client references as requested in Exhibit J.

_______ points
Miscellaneous Contractor Proposals as presented in Exhibit L.

_______ points
Anticipated program costs, including a detailed analysis of such costs, as
presented in Exhibit M., Annual Budget Projection (applicable to only Cost
Reimbursement Contracts)

_______ points
Food service management company fee(s) as presented in Exhibit N.

_______ points
Personnel and staffing plans as presented in Exhibit O.

_______ points
Plans to increase program participation as presented in Exhibit P.

_______ points
Compliance with Certificate of Independent Price Determination as
presented in Exhibit K.

_______ points
Adequacy of performance security as specified in Section XIV.

100 points TOTAL

VI. Basic Program Information

Information in the following exhibits is provided to assist the CONTRACTOR in preparing a
response to this Request for Proposal.

Exhibit A Sponsor Profile
Exhibit B 21-Day Cycle Menu
Exhibit C Purchasing Specification
Exhibit D Participation
Exhibit E Current Price Schedule
Exhibit F Financial Operating Statements
Exhibit G Division of Costs for the Food Service Program
Exhibit H Division of Responsibilities for the Food Service Program
Exhibit I Sponsor Policies Impacting the Food Service Program

56



57



VII. General Requirements

A. Sponsor Retains Control: The SPONSOR shall retain control of quality, extent and
general nature of its food service.

B. Compliance with Laws: The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all Federal, State, and
local laws.

C. Compliance with Child Nutrition Program Laws, Regulations, Guidance and
Agreements: The CONTRACTOR shall operate the food service program meeting all
requirements under the National School Lunch Act and Child Nutrition Act. The
CONTRACTOR shall conduct program operations in accordance with 7 CFR Parts 210,
215, 220, 225, 226, 245, 250 and USDA Food and Nutrition Service instructions and
policies. The CONTRACTOR shall comply with the terms of the SPONSOR's Child
Nutrition Program agreement with NDE.

D. Purchasing: All procurement for goods and services related to this contract shall
conform to Federal procurement standards which provide for maximum open and free
competition (7 CFR Part 3016 for public schools and 7 CFR Part 3019 for private
schools). The CONTRACTOR shall maintain documentation of compliance with these
standards. The CONTRACTOR will comply with Section 10c(d) of the William F
Gooding Child Nutrition Reauthorization Act of 1998 requiring that schools participating
in the National School Lunch Program (NSLP) and School Breakfast Program (SBP) to
purchase to the maximum extent practicable, domestic commodities or products for use
in meals under the NSLP and SBP.

E. Environmental: As specified in 7CFR, Section 3016.36(i)(12), the CONTRACTOR and
the SPONSOR shall comply with all applicable standards, orders, or requirements
issued under section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 USC 1857(h)), section 508 of the
Clean Water Act (33 USC 1368), Executive Order 11738, and Environmental Protection
Agency regulations (40 CFR Part 15), which prohibit the use under non-exempt Federal
contracts, grants or loans of facilities included on the EPA list of Violating Facilities.
Violations shall be reported to the U.S. Department of Agriculture and to the USEPA
Assistant Administrator for Enforcement (EN-329).

F. Energy: The SPONSOR and CONTRACTOR shall recognize mandatory standards and
policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the State energy
conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act.
(7CFR, Section 3016.36(i)(13)).

G. Equal Employment: The SPONSOR and CONTRACTOR shall comply with Executive
Order 11246, entitled “Equal Employment Opportunity,” as amended by Executive Order
11375, and as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (41CFR Part 60)
pursuant to 7CFR, Section 3016.36(i)(3).

H. Work Hours: The SPONSOR and CONTRACTOR shall comply with the Fair Labor
Standards Act, as amended, to include Sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work
Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 USC 327-330) as supplemented by Department of
Labor regulations (29 CFR, Part 5) pursuant to 7CFR, Section 3016.36(i)(6).

58



I. General Requirements, continued

I. Health Certifications: The SPONSOR shall maintain all applicable health certifications
on its facilities, and CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all state and local health
regulations are being met by the CONTRACTOR preparing and serving meals at any
Sponsor facility. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain for the duration of the contract
state and/or local health certifications for any facility outside the SPONSOR in which it
proposes to prepare meals and shall maintain this health certification for the duration of
the contract as required under 7 CFR 210.16.

J. Nondiscrimination: The SPONSOR and CONTRACTOR shall not discriminate on
the basis of disability, race, color, sex, national origin or age as defined by applicable
governmental law, in the recruitment, selection, training, utilization, promotion,
termination, or other employment related activities concerning food service personnel
pursuant but not limited to Titles VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. This
fundamental rule of conduct will be clearly communicated to all employees, prospective
employees and the community at large. In addition, each part affirms that it is an equal
opportunity and affirmative action employer.

K. The CONTRACTOR shall comply with the Buy American provisions for contracts that
involve the purchase of food, 7CFR, Part 250. The Contractor will sign the Certificate of
Independent Price Determination, Exhibit K, which will be incorporated herein by
references and made a part of the contract. The CONTRACTOR will sign the
Certification Regarding Disbarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion,
Exhibit Q, which will be attached as an addendum to the Contractor’s bid and which will
be incorporated herein by reference and made a part of the contract.. The contractor
will sign the Certificate Regarding Disclosure of Lobbying Activities, Exhibit R/S, which
will be incorporated herein by reference and made a part of the contract. New
certification is required for each renewal period for Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility
and Voluntary Exclusion and Certification Regarding Lobbying.

VIII. Food Service Operations Requirements

A. Auxiliary Businesses:: (as appropriate include those that apply) The following items are
included in this Request for Proposal.

1. Summer Food Service Program: Shall be operated to conform to 7CFR 225.

2. Special Services/Catering/Concessions: The CONTRACTOR shall provide for
special functions on a per event basis to be mutually agreed upon with consent from
the SPONSOR.

3. Other items and programs not specifically addressed in this Request for Proposal.

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain separate and proper accounting and control for each
auxiliary business it operates pursuant to this agreement.

All revenues from the operation of an auxiliary business/program, less all relevant cost
and expenses, shall accrue to the SPONSOR.

59



III. Food Service Operations Requirements, continued

B. Menu Cycle: The CONTRACTOR must adhere to the menu cycle specified in Exhibit B
for the first twenty-one (21) days of meal service. Changes thereafter may be made
with approval from the SPONSOR.

C. Menu Standards : Menu standards, as presented in the twenty-one (21) day cycle
menu, must be maintained as to type and quality of meal service. The menu planning
system must be identified or may be the same as specified in Exhibit A, Sponsor Profile,
item 11 The CONTRACTOR shall serve reimbursable meals that comply with the
Dietary Guidelines for Americans and the nutrient standards established by USDA in
Federal regulations for the National School Lunch Program and the School Breakfast
Program.

D. Menu Choices (as appropriate): The CONTRACTOR shall provide choices of menu
items for lunches and breakfasts.

E. Special Diets: In accordance with Federal regulations and FNS Instruction 783-2, the
CONTRACTOR shall make substitutions in reimbursable meals as specified by a
recognized medical authority for individual participating children whom are unable,
because of a disability or other special dietary need, to consume specified foods. The
SPONSOR shall notify the CONTRACTOR of any such special dietary needs.

F. A la carte: For the purposes of determining a meal equivalent, a la carte revenue will be
divided by a factor, based upon the total Federal and State reimbursement for free
lunches plus the value of USDA entitlement and donated foods in effect at the inception
of the contract. This factor shall remain constant for the duration of the contract. In
order to offer a la carte food service, the CONTRACTOR must also offer free, reduced
price and full price (i.e. paid) reimbursable meals to all eligible children.

G. Kitchen Maintenance: The CONTRACTOR will be responsible for maintaining the
kitchen area and meeting all safety and sanitation laws and regulations.

H. Kitchen Sanitation: The CONTRACTOR will maintain high standards of sanitation and
will be responsible for routine cleaning and housekeeping in the food preparation and
service areas (including food service equipment, kitchen floors, hoods, and grease
filters).

I. Unacceptable Meals: No payment shall be made for meals that are spoiled,
unwholesome or disallowed by appropriate authority at time of service; or those that do
not meet the specifications developed by the SPONSOR; or do not otherwise meet the
intent of this agreement; provided however, that no deduction shall be made unless the
SPONSOR shall give the CONTRACTOR written notification, specifying the number of
meals for which the SPONSOR intends to deduct payment and setting forth the reasons
for the deduction.

60



VIII. Food Service Operations Requirements, continued

K. USDA Donated Foods and Commodities: The SPONSOR retains title to all USDA
donated foods. Any federally donated commodities received by the SPONSOR and
made available to the CONTRACTOR will accrue only to the SPONSOR's food service
operation and be utilized therein. All refunds from processors must be retained by the
SPONSOR. The CONTRACTOR cannot subcontract processing of any donated
commodities. Donated commodities shall be kept separate and apart from the
purchased inventory of food and supplies. To the maximum extent feasible, the
CONTRACTOR shall use any food donated by USDA for the use of the SPONSOR in
the preparation of the meals and other food served to children. The CONTRACTOR
shall maintain adequate storage practices, inventory and control of such donated foods
to ensure that its use and responsibility for the donated foods is in compliance with the
SPONSOR's agreement with the State Distributing Agency. The CONTRACTOR shall
give the SPONSOR, USDA, and appropriate State representative’s access to the
storage areas for donated commodities. A credit to the SPONSOR for the USDA
donated foods, received by the SPONSOR during the accounting period, will be
included on the monthly invoice from the CONTRACTOR. The Commodity Bill of
Lading details the value of the USDA Commodities received will be used as the value for
the credit. The Contractor shall accept liability for any negligence on its part that results
in any loss of, improper use of, or damage to, USDA donated foods. USDA donated
foods are not to be used for special functions conducted outside of the nonprofit school
food service.

L. Food Specifications: The CONTRACTOR will provide detailed specifications for each
food component served as specified in 7 CFR Part 210.

M. Price of Meals: The SPONSOR will retain control of establishing prices for reimbursable
meals, a la carte service, vending machines and adult meals. The CONTRACTOR shall
not alter the price of meals without prior notice and approval of the SPONSOR.

N. Food Service Advisory Committee: The SPONSOR, with the assistance of the
CONTRACTOR, shall establish an advisory committee representative of all students,
teachers, and parents to assist in menu planning. The advisory committee shall meet at
least semi-annually. Each semester, the CONTRACTOR shall cooperate with the
SPONSOR to prepare an action plan for consideration by the advisory committee.
Minutes from the meeting will be documented and kept on file by CONTRACTOR.

O. All “local” rebates or “local” refunds shall belong to the Sponsor. At the outset of
services, the Sponsor and the successful contractor will jointly inventory food and
supplies currently in-house. Revenues from the food services program will be used only
for the Sponsor’s non-profit food school service program and will not accrue to the
Contractor. All revenue and any expenses which are charged to the Sponsor must flow
through the Sponsor’s chart of accounts. Contractor expenses which are not billed to
the Sponsor cannot be recorded as to the food service account. Control over the
nonprofit food service account, and overall financial responsibility for the nonprofit feed
service operation shall be retained by the Sponsor. The successful contractor shall be
responsive to the requests and needs of the Sponsor. Ownership of all existing non-
expendable supplies and capital equipment shall remain with the Sponsor. However,
the Contractor shall take such measures as may be reasonably required by the Sponsor

61



for protection against loss by pilferage or destruction. The Contractor will be expected
to use food and paper product inventories on hand and credit them to the cost of
operations at the original purchase price. On termination or expiration of the contract,
the Sponsor shall conduct a physical inventory of all non-expendable supplies and
capital equipment. At that time, the Contractor shall surrender the facilities and
equipment to the Sponsor in as good condition as at the start of the contract, ordinary
wear and tear excepted

IX. Miscellaneous Sponsor Rights

A. School Day: The SPONSOR reserves the right to cancel or shorten any school day. A
twenty-four (24) hour notice will be given to the CONTRACTOR in non-emergency
situations. In the event of emergency closure, the SPONSOR shall provide the
CONTRACTOR with as much advance notice of the closure as possible, and the
SPONSOR will not be charged on that day(s).

B. Locations of Program: The SPONSOR reserves the right to add or delete locations of
food service from the list of schools included in the program as conditions may change.

C. Grade Organization: The SPONSOR reserves the right to make any grade level
changes it deems necessary.

D. Use of Facilities: The SPONSOR reserves the right to use school food service
preparation areas at times other than when facilities are in use by the CONTRACTOR;
however, the CONTRACTOR may require an employee to be present and to be
reimbursed by the user.

E. Offer Vs. Serve: The SPONSOR reserves the right to change all but the senior high
school program from an “offer” program to a “serve” program at any time it deems to do
so.

X. Accountability Requirements

A. Contract Administrator: The SPONSOR will name a person to represent them as a
liaison between the SPONSOR and the successful CONTRACTOR.

B. Signature Authority: The SPONSOR shall retain signature authority on the program
agreement with NDE, reduced price and free policy statement, edit check worksheet,
and the claims for reimbursement as outlined in Exhibit H, Division of Responsibilities for
the Food Service Program.

C. On-Site Reviews: Authorized representatives of the SPONSOR shall monitor the food
service operation through periodic onsite visits to ensure the food service is in
conformance with program regulations. Representatives from the State and USDA shall
have the right to conduct on-site administrative reviews of the food service operation.

D. Review of Bids, Invoices, Etc.: The SPONSOR reserves the right to review all bids,
invoices, and any other pertinent records of the CONTRACTOR at any time.

E. Recordkeeping:

62



1. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain such records as the SPONSOR will need to
support its claim for reimbursement under the National School Lunch Act and Child
Nutrition Act including accurate records of student participation in the food service
program and income records categorized by source, type and category of meal or
food service. The CONTRACTOR shall provide necessary reports to the SPONSOR
within ten (10) days following the end of each month of operation. Upon request, all
records of the CONTRACTOR pertaining to the SPONSOR's food service program
shall be made available at the CONTRACTOR's offices during regular business
hours to representatives of the SPONSOR, NDE, USDA, the United States
Comptroller General, or the United States General Accounting Office. All Contractor
records pertaining to the Sponsor should be maintained at the Sponsor’s location
while the contract is in effect, and preferably for the required retention period.

2. All such records shall be kept on file for five (5) years after the end of the Federal
fiscal year to which they pertain, or for such other period which the U.S. Secretary of
Agriculture or appropriate State officials may from time to time determine; provided
however, that if audit findings have not been resolved, the records shall be retained
beyond the five (5) year period as long as required for the resolution of the issues
raised by the audit.

3. Books and records of the CONTRACTOR pertaining to the school food service
operation shall be available as required by State and Federal regulations for
inspection and audit by the SPONSOR, State, or Federal auditors. These records
shall be maintained at a central location approved by the SPONSOR, preferably at
the Sponsor’s location.

F. Reporting:

1. The CONTRACTOR will maintain an information database from which the
SPONSOR will be provided weekly, monthly, quarterly, and annual reports in such
detail as may be reasonably expected to manage the program.

2. The CONTRACTOR shall prepare reports as required by government regulations or
SPONSOR requirements.

XI. Fee Structure

A. Definition of Costs and Fees

1. The SPONSOR’s specifications for the price quote and fee structure are found in
Exhibit N, Food Service Management Company Fee Proposal.

2. The CONTRACTOR’s proposed fee(s) are also found in Exhibit N, Food Service
Management Company Fee Proposal

3. Direct operating expenses to be paid by the CONTRACTOR are specified in Exhibit
G, Division of Costs for the Food Service Program.

4. The SPONSOR will reimburse the CONTRACTOR for only allowable costs less all
credits, discounts and rebates.

63



64



XI. Fee Structure, continued

B. Management Fee

The SPONSOR shall pay the CONTRACTOR a Management Fee which is a fixed fee
including only a Management Fee per meal/meal equivalent. The SPONSOR shall
directly pay all costs of operating the food service program.

1. Billing: The CONTRACTOR shall bill the SPONSOR for the Management Fee Only
as specified in Exhibit N. The CONTRACTOR’s bill shall be accompanied by
documentation, in a format approved by the SPONSOR, which supports all fees
claimed.

2. Payment Limitations: Prior to making payment, the SPONSOR shall audit and
approve fees as documented and billed by the CONTRACTOR.

65



66



67



.
XII. Licenses, Permits and Taxes

The costs of licenses, permits and taxes shall be considered a direct cost of operation as
specified in Exhibit G, Division of Costs for the Food Service Program. The term "license"
refers to items such as permits and certificates.

A. Licenses: The shall obtain and keep in effect all Federal, State, and local licenses
required for the operation of the food service program. Such licenses shall be posted in
a prominent place within the food service area as required by law or regulation.

They shall obtain State or local health license(s) for any facility, in which meals will be
prepared for the SPONSOR's food service program, including facilities other than the
SPONSOR's.

B. Taxes and Fees: They shall be responsible for paying all applicable taxes and fees as
specified in Exhibit G, Division of Costs for the Food Service Program. These include,
but are not limited to, excise tax, State and local income taxes, payroll and withholding
taxes, unemployment taxes, and workers compensation payments for its employees.
They shall indemnify and hold the harmless for all claims related to such taxes and
fees.

XIII. Insurance and Indemnification

a. General Liability: (Contact your current insurer for appropriate language and limits)

1. The CONTRACTOR shall obtain and keep in force during the term of this
agreement, for the protection of the SPONSOR and the CONTRACTOR,
Comprehensive General Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability Insurance, to
include Fire Legal Liability in the combined single limit of at least $ million
dollars including but not limited to Personal Injury Liability, Broad Form Property
Damage Liability, Blanket Contractual Liability and Products Liability, covering only
the operations and activities of the CONTRACTOR under this agreement.

2. The SPONSOR shall be named an additional insured on all required insurance
policies, but only with respect to operations of the CONTRACTOR under its
agreement with the SPONSOR.

3. The contract of insurance shall provide for notice to the SPONSOR of cancellation of
insurance policies thirty (30) days before such cancellation is to take effect.

68



XIII. Insurance and Indemnification, continued

4. The CONTRACTOR shall deliver to the SPONSOR a certificate of insurance within
thirty (30) days after the execution of this agreement for all required policies. The
certificate of insurance shall contain: a) names and addresses of insured; b) titles
and locations of the operations to which the insurance applies; c) number of the
policy and type or types of insurance in force thereunder on the date of the
certificate; d) expiration date of the policy; and 5) a statement that the insurance of
the type afforded by the policy applies to all of the operations and activities on and at
the site of the project or incidental thereto, which are undertaken by the
CONTRACTOR during the performance of the agreement.

5. The SPONSOR shall keep its buildings, including the premises, and all property
contained therein insured against loss or damage by fire, explosion and similar
casualties.

a. Contribution and Indemnification

1. The CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless the SPONSOR or any
employee, director, or agent of the SPONSOR, from and against all claims,
damages, losses, and expenses (including attorney fees incurred to defend
litigation), decrees or judgments whatsoever arising from any and all injuries,
including death or damages or destruction of property, resulting to any third person
or persons, corporation, partnerships or associations caused by any act, omission,
failure or neglect of the CONTRACTOR and its agents, servants or employees, or
other persons under its supervision or direction including SPONSOR’s employees
under the supervision of the CONTRACTOR in performance of its obligations under
the terms of this agreement.

2. The CONTRACTOR shall not be required to indemnify or hold harmless the
SPONSOR from any liability or damages arising from the negligent acts of the
SPONSOR.

3. The foregoing provisions concerning contribution and indemnification shall not apply
to the CONTRACTOR’s or SPONSOR's liability under applicable worker's
compensation laws. Nor shall the foregoing be deemed a waiver of any defenses to
which the CONTRACTOR or the SPONSOR may be entitled under applicable
worker's compensation laws.

c. Worker's Compensation and Unemployment Insurance

The CONTRACTOR shall provide worker's compensation and unemployment
insurance as specified on Exhibit G, Division of Costs for the Food Service Program.

69



XIV. Performance Security (Optional, but recommended)

The CONTRACTOR shall be required to:

A. Submit with the proposal a certified check payable to the SPONSOR or a performance
bond in the amount of $ . Upon award of contract, the SPONSOR shall return all
such checks to the unsuccessful proposers.

B. The SPONSOR shall retain the successful proposer's deposit until the CONTRACTOR
has faithfully performed all terms of the contract.

XV. Term of Contract

A. Contract Form: The SPONSOR will only consider contracts in a form prescribed by the
SPONSOR.

B. Contract Period: This agreement shall become effective on July 1, 2008, and shall
terminate on June 30, 2009, unless an extension is agreed to in accordance with the
terms stated below, or unless terminated earlier as provided below.

C. Contract Extension: Pursuant to Federal regulations, any extensions of this contract
shall be executed prior to expiration of the preceding contract period. Any such
extensions shall not extend the contract period more than an additional ______ years
beyond the original contract period of July 1, 2009, to June 30, 2013.

D. Negotiation of Food Service Management Company (FSMC) Fee(s): The SPONSOR
and the CONTRACTOR may negotiate the FSMC Fee(s) and other terms of the
agreement beginning no later than six (6) months prior to the end of the contract period,
and concluding no later than three (3) months prior to the end of the contract period,
unless otherwise agreed upon by the parties. Any increases in FSMC Fee(s) in
subsequent agreements shall be agreed to by the parties.

The contract is for one year with the option to renew the contract for up to four additional
years. If the SPONSOR elects to renew the contract with the CONTRACTOR, the terms
and conditions of the existing contract shall remain substantially unchanged. Any price
changes in the contract as part of a renewal will be based upon all CONTRACTOR fees
of the original contract. Fee increases shall not exceed the changes in the Consumer
Price Index Rate for Food Away from Home for the 12 months preceding the most
recent quarterly calculation available when the contract is renewed.

E. Material Breach: In the event either party commits a material breach, the non-breaching
party may terminate this agreement for cause by giving sixty (60) days written notice. If
the breach is remedied prior to the proposed termination date, the non-breaching party
may elect to continue this agreement.

70



Term of Contract, continued

F. Termination: Notwithstanding the previously stated breaching provision, the SPONSOR
may terminate this contract for breach/neglect as determined by the SPONSOR with
written notification to the CONTRACTOR, in regard to such items as failure to maintain
and enforce required standards of sanitation, failure to maintain proper insurance
coverage as outlined by the contract, failure to provide required periodic
information/statements, or failure to maintain quality of service at a level satisfactory to
the SPONSOR.

The CONTRACTOR and the SPONSOR may each terminate this agreement without
cause by providing ninety (90) days written notice to the other party of its intent to
terminate.

The rights of termination in this agreement are not intended to be exclusive and are in
addition to any other rights available to either party at law or in equity.

G. Intent Not to Renew: The CONTRACTOR shall provide one hundred-twenty (120) days
written notice to the SPONSOR of any intent not to renew the contract.

H. Performance Security: (Insert as appropriate) At the discretion of the SPONSOR, the
SPONSOR may retain all or a part of the Performance Security stipulated in Section
XIV, as a result of such nonperformance.

I. Contract Amendments: Any agreements shall remain in effect throughout its term
unless the parties mutually agree, in a written document signed by both parties and
attached to the agreement, to amend, add or delete any article or exhibit. Any
amendment to the agreement shall become effective at the time specified in the
amendment. Comments from the CONTRACTOR to the SPONSOR will go through the
SPONSOR's Contract Administrator.

J. Responsible Authority: The SPONSOR is the responsible authority without recourse to
USDA Food and Nutrition Service or to NDE for the settlement and satisfaction of all
contractual and administrative issues arising from the contract. Such authority includes,
but is not limited to, source evaluation, protests, disputes, claims, or other matters of a
contractual nature. Matters concerning violations of the law will be referred to the local,
State, or Federal authority that has proper jurisdiction.

K. Limitations of Financial Commitment: The SPONSOR's financial commitments
contained in the agreement are subject to annual appropriation by the SPONSOR's
School Board.

L. Catastrophe. With the exception of payment obligations for prior performance under
this agreement, neither the CONTRACTOR nor the SPONSOR shall be liable for the
failure to perform their respective obligations under this agreement when such failure is
caused by fire, explosion, water, acts of God (except emergency closing days as stated
in the SPONSOR policy, which is attached as Exhibit I), civil disorder or disturbance,
strikes, vandalism, war, riot, sabotage, governmental rules or regulations, or like causes
that are beyond the reasonable control of such party.

71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



Agreement

for Management of a

School Food Service Program

(Sponsor Number and Name)

(Contractor Name)

(Date Issued)

88



Contract Prototype - Revised 11/08/07; 9:43 AM - Page 2

Agreement
for Management of a

School Food Service Program

THIS AGREEMENT, made this day of by and between the governing board of Millard

Public Schools, hereinafter referred to as the SPONSOR and hereinafter referred to

as the CONTRACTOR.

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR submitted a proposal dated to the SPONSOR to provide
food service management to the SPONSOR and has been awarded a contract by the
SPONSOR, contingent upon the execution of an agreement that is acceptable to both parties.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and agreements hereinafter expressed, it
is mutually covenanted and agreed by and between the parties hereto as follows:

I. Scope and Purpose

A. This agreement is subject to review and approval by Nutrition Services, Nebraska
Department of Education, hereinafter referred to as NDE.

B. The SPONSOR's Request for Proposal (RFP), including all of its exhibits, the
CONTRACTOR's Proposal, and the Agreement Cover Sheet are hereby in all respects
made a part of this agreement. In the event of a conflict between the Request for
Proposal, the Proposal and this agreement, the terms of this agreement shall prevail.

C. This agreement sets forth the terms and conditions upon which the SPONSOR retains
the CONTRACTOR to manage and operate the SPONSOR's food service program.

D. "Food service program" refers to the operation of the National School Lunch Program
and/or the School Breakfast Program, and/or the Special Milk Program, and/or the After
School Snack Program, and/or the Summer Food Service Program as well as other
auxiliary businesses described in the RFP.

E. The CONTRACTOR shall have the exclusive right to operate the SPONSOR's food
service program for the sole benefit of the SPONSOR, students, faculty, staff, invited
guests and other persons designated by the SPONSOR, and not as a source of profit to
the CONTRACTOR, other than from the Management Fee that it receives under this
agreement.

F. This agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the SPONSOR and the
CONTRACTOR and may not be changed, terminated or extended orally or by course of
conduct, except as expressly agreed to in writing by the parties and with the approval of
NDE.

G. This agreement may not be assigned by either party in whole or in part without the written
consent of the other party.

89



Contract Prototype - Revised 11/08/07; 9:43 AM - Page 3

I. Scope and Purpose, continued

H. This agreement shall be construed under the laws of the State of Nebraska. Any action
or proceeding arising out of this agreement shall be brought in the appropriate courts of
the State of Nebraska.

I. This agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed
an original.

J. A waiver of any failure under this agreement shall neither be construed as nor constitute
a waiver of any subsequent failure. This agreement supersedes all prior negotiations,
representations or agreements, if any. The section headings are used solely for
convenience and shall not be deemed to limit the subject of the sections and paragraphs
or be considered in their interpretation.

K. If any provision is unenforceable or invalid for any reason, the remainder of this
agreement shall continue in effect.

L. Payments of any expense or fee shall not preclude the SPONSOR from making a claim
for adjustment on any item that is found not to have been in accordance with the
provisions of this agreement and proposal specifications.

M. Any notice or communication required or permitted under this agreement shall be in
writing and shall be served personally or sent by United States registered or certified
mail, postage prepaid with return receipt requested, addressed to the other party as
follows:

To SPONSOR:

To CONTRACTOR:

with copy to:

and/or to such other persons or places as either of the parties may hereafter designate in
writing. All such notices shall be deemed effective when received, but no later than forty-
eight (48) hours after the same are deposited in the United States mail.

II. Food Service Operations

A. Menus and Food Items

1. The CONTRACTOR shall sell on the SPONSOR's premises only those foods and
beverages authorized by the SPONSOR and only at the times and places designated
by the SPONSOR.

2. The CONTRACTOR shall not distribute "foods of minimal nutritional value" in
competition with reimbursable meals pursuant to State and Federal laws and
regulations.

3. The CONTRACTOR shall provide condiments.

90



Contract Prototype - Revised 11/08/07; 9:43 AM - Page 4

II. Food Service Operations, continued

4. If the SPONSOR participates in the Special Milk Program, the CONTRACTOR shall
serve milk that meets requirements for reimbursement.

B. Meal Pricing and Adult Meals

1. The SPONSOR's and the CONTRACTOR's employees may purchase
meals/milk/snacks at the option and direction of the SPONSOR at prices approved by
the SPONSOR.

2. The CONTRACTOR shall not count meals/milk/snacks served to adults for
reimbursement under the National School Lunch Program, and/or the School
Breakfast Program, and/or Special Milk Program, and/or After School Care Snack
Program, and/or Summer Food Service Program.

3. The RFP, Exhibit E, Current Price Schedule lists the current food service program
prices.

C. A la Carte Food Service

3. The SPONSOR shall approve all a la carte items served and all a la carte prices
charged by the CONTRACTOR in advance of sale.

D. Locations and Facilities

4. The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all of the SPONSOR's Policies and Rules.

5. The CONTRACTOR shall provide specified types of service in the locations listed in
the RFP, Exhibit A, Sponsor Profile. The CONTRACTOR and the SPONSOR may
agree to add or delete locations.

6. The CONTRACTOR shall be entitled to use the SPONSOR's facilities for the
preparation and service of food at the sites listed in the RFP, Exhibit A, Sponsor
Profile.

7. The SPONSOR shall furnish at its expense, space, light, heat, power, hot and cold
water, and other utilities as are necessary for the operation of the food service
program and which are more particularly set forth in the RFP, Exhibit G, Division of
Costs for the Food Service Program.

91



Contract Prototype - Revised 11/08/07; 9:43 AM - Page 5

II. Food Service Operations, continued

8. The SPONSOR shall provide the CONTRACTOR with local telephone service.

9. The SPONSOR shall notify the CONTRACTOR of any interruption in utilities of which
it has knowledge.

10. The SPONSOR shall make available without charge to the CONTRACTOR an area
or areas agreeable to both parties in which the CONTRACTOR shall render its
services; such area or areas shall be reasonably suited for providing efficient food
service.

11. The SPONSOR shall provide, without charge to the CONTRACTOR, office space for
use by the CONTRACTOR in the performance of this agreement. The
CONTRACTOR shall take reasonable and proper care of the office space and shall
return it to the SPONSOR at the termination of the agreement in good condition,
ordinary wear and tear excepted.

12. The SPONSOR may request that the CONTRACTOR provide additional food service
programs. However, the SPONSOR reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to sell
or dispense any food or beverage before or after the SPONSOR's regularly
scheduled lunch or breakfast periods provided such use does not interfere with the
operation of the school lunch and/or breakfast and/or special milk and/or after school
care snack programs, and is in compliance with State and Federal laws and
regulations regarding non-nutritious foods or foods sold in competition with
reimbursable meals/snacks.

13. If the SPONSOR uses the facilities for extracurricular activities before or after the
SPONSOR's regularly scheduled lunch or breakfast period, the SPONSOR shall
return facilities and equipment to the CONTRACTOR in the same condition as
received, normal wear and tear excepted.

14. The SPONSOR shall be responsible for painting within the kitchen and dining areas.

E. Inventory, Equipment and Storage

1. The SPONSOR shall inventory the equipment owned by the SPONSOR at the
beginning of the school year, including but not limited to silverware, trays, chinaware,
glassware, kitchen utensils, food and nonfood supplies.

2. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain the inventory of silverware, trays, chinaware,
glassware, kitchen utensils, and other operating items necessary for the food service
operation.

3. The CONTRACTOR shall use appropriate storage practices and maintain food and
nonfood inventories.

4. The CONTRACTOR shall provide locks for storage and office areas under its direct
supervision. At least one set of keys to those locks shall be provided to the
SPONSOR.

5. The SPONSOR shall replace expendable equipment and replace, repair and
maintain inventoried equipment except when damages result from the negligence of
the employees of the CONTRACTOR, in which event the CONTRACTOR shall repair
or replace the equipment.

92



Contract Prototype - Revised 11/08/07; 9:43 AM - Page 6

II. Food Service Operations, continued

6. The SPONSOR shall furnish and install any equipment or make any structural
changes needed to comply with Federal, State and local laws, ordinances, rules, and
regulations regarding the food service program. The SPONSOR’s general funds
must be used for ay capital improvements.

7. All food preparation and serving equipment owned by the SPONSOR shall remain on
the premises of the SPONSOR.

8. The SPONSOR shall not be responsible for loss or damage to equipment owned by
the CONTRACTOR and located on the SPONSOR's premises unless such damage
is caused by negligence of the SPONSOR's employee(s).

9. The CONTRACTOR shall request prior approval from the SPONSOR before the
CONTRACTOR installs any equipment on the SPONSOR's premises.

10. The shall pay for oil and gas used by its owned, hired, or other vehicles under its
supervision that are used for delivering food or nonfood commodities.

11. The shall provide its own drivers for owned, hired, or other vehicles under its
supervision that are used for delivering food or nonfood commodities.

F. Sanitation
1. The CONTRACTOR shall ensure that food service workers place garbage and trash

in appropriate bags and place in designated areas daily.

2. The SPONSOR shall remove all garbage and trash from designated areas daily.

3. The CONTRACTOR shall ensure that food service workers clean daily (or arrange for
cleaning) the kitchen area, including but not limited to sinks, counters, grease traps,
stoves, tables, chairs, silverware, and utensils.

4. The CONTRACTOR shall ensure that food service workers operate and maintain all
equipment in a clean, safe, and healthy condition in accordance with standards
acceptable to the SPONSOR and comply with all applicable laws, ordinances,
regulations and rules of federal, state, and local authorities. The CONTRACTOR
shall arrange for periodic safety inspections of equipment.

5. The SPONSOR shall be responsible for cleaning of ducts and hoods above the filter
line and will provide extermination services as needed.

6. The CONTRACTOR shall comply with the laws, ordinances, rules and regulations of
all applicable Federal, State, county and city governments, bureaus and departments
concerning the sanitation, safety and health of the food service operations, and the
implementing regulations of the USDA issued thereunder and any additions or
amendments thereto.

93



Contract Prototype - Revised 11/08/07; 9:43 AM - Page 7

II. Food Service Operations, continued

A.Employees

1. The CONTRACTOR shall be an independent contractor and not an employee of the
SPONSOR. Employees of the CONTRACTOR shall not be considered to be
employees of the SPONSOR.

2. The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all Federal and State laws regarding wages
and hours of employment.

3. The CONTRACTOR shall provide Worker's Compensation and unemployment
insurance for its employees.

4. The CONTRACTOR shall instruct its employees to abide by the policies, rules and
regulations with respect to use of SPONSOR premises as established by the
SPONSOR and furnished in writing or in an electronic format to the CONTRACTOR.

5. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain its own personnel policies and fringe benefits for
its employees subject to review by the SPONSOR.

6. The CONTRACTOR shall provide the SPONSOR with a list of its personnel policies.

7. Staffing patterns shall be mutually agreed upon and be limited to that which is
necessary for efficient operation.

8. The CONTRACTOR shall manage the SPONSOR's employees in accordance with
the SPONSOR's personnel policies.

9. The CONTRACTOR shall provide the SPONSOR two full calendar weeks prior to the
commencement of operation with a schedule of employees, positions, assigned
locations, salaries and hours to be worked. The SPONSOR shall approve the
staffing plan prior to commencement of operations and prior to any changes made
during the term of the contract.

10. The SPONSOR shall provide sanitary toilet facilities for the employees of the
CONTRACTOR.

11. The SPONSOR may request in writing the removal of an employee of the
CONTRACTOR who violates health requirements or conducts herself/himself in a
manner which is detrimental to the physical, mental, or moral well-being of students
or of the SPONSOR's personnel.

12. In the event of the removal or suspension of any such employee, the CONTRACTOR
shall restructure its staff without significant disruption in service.

13. All CONTRACTOR and SPONSOR personnel assigned to each school shall be
instructed on the use of all emergency valves, switches, and fire and safety devices
in the food preparation, serving and dining areas.

94



Contract Prototype - Revised 11/08/07; 9:43 AM - Page 8

II. Food Service Operations, continued

14. The CONTRACTOR shall cause all employees working in the food service program
to comply with the SPONSOR's policies dealing with drug-free workplace and the use
of tobacco products.

15. The SPONSOR has a policy of providing work experience for its students. In
furtherance of this policy, the SPONSOR may assign students for work in the
SPONSOR's food service program in such numbers as are mutually agreed between
the SPONSOR and the CONTRACTOR. The CONTRACTOR shall supervise such
students while such students are working in the SPONSOR's food service program.
The CONTRACTOR shall provide and enforce reasonable rules and regulations to
ensure the safety of all student workers.

B. Other Provisions

1. The CONTRACTOR shall promote maximum participation in the Child Nutrition
Programs using the plans described in the RFP, Exhibit Q, Plans to Increase
Program Participation.

2. The CONTRACTOR shall promote nutrition/health education as required by the
local county, State, or Federal governments and as approved by the SPONSOR's
board of education. The SPONSOR shall inform the CONTRACTOR of any such
requirements

III. Sponsor Rights and Responsibilities

A. The SPONSOR's authorized representatives shall have access to the food service
facilities at all times.

B. The SPONSOR may make reasonable regulations with respect to the operation of the
food service program.

C. The SPONSOR shall supervise and monitor the food service program in such manner as
will ensure compliance with all applicable rules and regulations of NDE and the United
States Department of Agriculture (USDA).

D. The SPONSOR shall be responsible for ensuring resolution of program review and audit
findings.

E. The SPONSOR shall be solely responsible for implementation of its free and reduced
price meal policy including development, distribution, approval and maintenance of free
and reduced price applications; direct certification and verification activities. These
responsibilities shall not be delegated to the CONTRACTOR to any degree.

95



Contract Prototype - Revised 11/08/07; 9:43 AM - Page 9

III. Sponsor Rights and Responsibilities

F. The SPONSOR shall be responsible for all contractual agreements entered into in
connection with the school nutrition program (for example, vending meals to other Child
Nutrition Program sponsors).

IV. Financial Management

A.General

1. The SPONSOR shall retain control of the school food service account and overall
financial responsibility for the food service program.

2. All income accruing to the SPONSOR from the food service program shall remain in
the program.

3. The CONTRACTOR shall coordinate the sale of all meals and the necessary
collection procedures and ensure that all revenues are delivered to the SPONSOR
who shall deposit all revenues in the appropriate school food service account(s).

4. If reimbursement from NDE is denied as a direct result of the CONTRACTOR's
failure to comply with the provisions of this agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall
reimburse the SPONSOR for the amount to which it would otherwise have been
entitled.

B.Payment

2. The CONTRACTOR shall bill the SPONSOR, within seven (7) days of the close of
each period of program operation.

3. The SPONSOR shall make payment to the CONTRACTOR within the Sponsor’s
normal bill paying cycle.

4. The CONTRACTOR shall be entitled to a Management Fee as described in the RFP,
Section XI, Fee Structure. The amount of the Management Fee per meal or meal
equivalent is specified in the RFP, Exhibit N, Food Service Management Company
Fee Proposal.

96



Contract Prototype - Revised 11/08/07; 9:43 AM - Page 10

IV. Financial Management

C. Accounting and Recordkeeping

3. The CONTRACTOR's financial accounting shall be in accordance with NDE rules
and regulations, applicable state laws, and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP).

4. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain such records (supported by invoices, receipts, or
other evidence) that the SPONSOR will need to meet periodic reporting
responsibilities and shall submit periodic operating statements in a format approved
by the SPONSOR no later than the tenth calendar day succeeding the month in
which services were rendered; participation records of reimbursable meals/milk shall
be submitted no later than the fan agreed upon working day succeeding the month
in which services were rendered.

5. The CONTRACTOR must retain records to support the SPONSOR's claim for
reimbursement of the daily number of meal served, by type. The CONTRACTOR
must daily report these meal counts to the SPONSOR.

6. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain records to support all allowable expenses
appearing on the periodic operating statement. These records shall be kept in an
orderly fashion according to expense categories as approved by the SPONSOR.
Further, copies of all invoices in support of periodic statements will be provided
monthly by the CONTRACTOR to the SPONSOR. A detailed expenditure report (in a
format mutually agreed to by the parties) will be provided by the CONTRACTOR in
addition to summary category reports on a monthly basis.

7. The CONTRACTOR shall provide the SPONSOR with a year-end statement of
income and expenses for the entire food service program including the auxiliary
businesses described in the RFP, Exhibit A, Sponsor Profile.

8. Such records shall be available, for a period of five (5) years from the date of final
payment under the contract, for inspection and audit by representatives of NDE,
USDA and the United States General Accounting Office at any reasonable time and
place; except that, if audit findings have not been resolved, the records shall be
retained beyond the five (5) year period as long as required for the resolution of the
issues raised by the audit.

D. Audits and Reviews

4. The SPONSOR's designee shall review all administrative and financially related
operations of the CONTRACTOR. The CONTRACTOR's reimbursement for eligible
direct costs of operation, as specified in the RFP, Exhibit G, Division of Costs for the
Food Service Program, and Management Fee will be paid only as approved by the
SPONSOR's designee as being consistent with the terms of this agreement.

IV. Financial Management

1. The SPONSOR may audit the CONTRACTOR's operations as part of its year-end
audit. The SPONSOR may also conduct special audits as it deems appropriate. The
CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify the SPONSOR of any audit, inquiry or legal
investigation of its records by a local, State, or Federal authority that is in any way related
to the SPONSOR.

97



Contract Prototype - Revised 11/08/07; 9:43 AM - Page 11

2. The SPONSOR, NDE, USDA or Comptroller General of the United States, or any of
their duly authorized representatives shall have access to any books, documents, papers,
and records of the CONTRACTOR which are directly pertinent to this agreement, for the
purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts and transcriptions.

V. Signatures

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement as of the date
and year first written above.

SPONSOR:

Authorized Signature

________________________________________________________________________
Name Title

Date

CONTRACTOR:

Authorized Signature

_______________________________________________________________________
Name Title

Date ______________________________________

98



Contractor Exhibits - Revised 11/08/07; 9:44 AM

Contractor Exhibits

Exhibit J Contractor Profile

Exhibit K Certificate of Independent Price Determination

Exhibit L Miscellaneous Contractor Proposals

Exhibit M Annual Budget Projection

Exhibit N Food Service Management Company Fee Proposal

Exhibit O Personnel and Staffing Plans

Exhibit P Plans to Increase Program Participation

99



Contractor Exhibits - Revised 11/08/07; 9:44 AM

Exhibit J - Contractor Profile

Part 1 - Contact Information

A. Respondent's Name:

B. Title:

C. Signature: .....................................................................................................................................

D. Mailing Address:

E. Area Code/Telephone:

F. Fax:

G. E-mail:

Part 2 - General Information

A. Company Name:

B. Address of Company Headquarters:

C. Number of Offices:

D. Location of Offices:

E. Employees:

Category Number

All company employees

Food service employees

School food service employees

Client employees supervised by company

100



Contractor Exhibits - Revised 11/08/07; 9:44 AM

Exhibit J, Contractor Profile, continued

Part 3 - School Food Service Experience

A. Attach a client list, using the format below, that includes each school district or other similar
organization that the company has served during the past 5 years. Label as Exhibit J, Part 3, A.

District Name:

Status:  Active  Discontinued/Terminated
If your company's services were discontinued or terminated, explain why.

Contact information for district administrator who is knowledgeable of your firm's performance:

Name:

Title:

Area Code / Phone Number:

B. Attach a narrative summary documenting the company's experience during the past 3 years of
successfully operating a complex food service program requiring nutritious meals that comply with
applicable regulations. Label as Exhibit J, Part 3, B.

C. Attach a reference list providing the name, title, address, and phone number of 3 current food
service clients who can be contacted as references. Label as Exhibit J, Part 3, C.

Name:

Title:

Client Organization:

Address:

Area Code / Phone Number:

Part 4 - Personnel and Management Team

A. Attach a list including the names of all team members and their proposed roles in the Sponsor's
food service program. Label as Exhibit J, Part 4, A..

B. Attach a resume for each team member listed in Part 3, A. showing his or her relevant experience
and qualifications. Label as Exhibit J, Part 4, B.

C. Briefly describe the company's organization, and how its resources will be used for the benefit of
the Sponsor's food service program. Label as Exhibit J, Part 4, C.

101



Contractor Exhibits - Revised 11/08/07; 9:44 AM

Exhibit K - Certificate of Independent Price Determination

Both the SPONSOR and CONTRACTOR (i.e. the "offerer") shall execute this Certificate of Independent Price
Determination.

A. By submission of their offer, the offeror certifies and in the case of a joint offer, each party thereto certifies as to
its own organization, that in connection with this procurement:

1. The prices in this offer have been arrived at independently, without consultation, communication or
agreement for the purpose of restricting competition, as to any matter relating to such prices with any other
offerer or with any competitor;

2. Unless otherwise required by law, the prices which have been quoted in this offer have not been knowingly
disclosed by the offeror and will not knowingly be disclosed by the offeror prior to opening in the case of an
advertised procurement, or prior to award in the case of a negotiated procurement, directly or indirectly to
any other offeror or to any competitor; and

3. No attempt has been made or will be made by the offeror to induce any person or firm to submit or not to
submit an offer for the purpose of restricting competition.

B. Each person signing this offer on behalf of the Food Service Management Company certifies that:

1. He or she is the person in the offeror’s organization responsible within the organization for the decision as
to the prices being offered herein and has not participated, and will not participate, in any action contrary to
A.1. through A.3. above; or

2. He or she is not the person in the offeror’s organization responsible with the organization for the decision as
to the prices being offered herein, but that he or she has been authorized in writing to act as agent for the
persons responsible for such decision in certifying that such persons have not participated and will not
participate, in any action contrary to A.1. through A.3. above, and as their agent does hereby so certify; and
he or she has not participated, and will not participate, in any action contrary to A.1. through A.3. above.

To the best of my knowledge, this food service management company, its affiliates, subsidiaries, officers, directors
and employees are not currently under investigation by any governmental agency and have not in the last three
years been convicted or found liable for any act prohibited by State or Federal law in any jurisdiction, involving
conspiracy or collusion with respect to bidding on any public contract, except as described on the attached sheet (if
applicable):

_______________________________________________________________________________
Name of Food Service Management Company

Signature of Food Service Management Company’s Authorized Representative

Title Date

In accepting this offer, the sponsor certifies that no representative of the sponsor has taken any action which may
have jeopardized the independence of the offer referred to above.

Name of Sponsor

Signature of Sponsor's Authorized Representative

Title Date

102



Contractor Exhibits - Revised 11/08/07; 9:44 AM

Exhibit L - Miscellaneous Contractor Proposals

Clearly label all responses to information requested on this exhibit with the exhibit letter and the item
number.

1. Inventories (as appropriate): The successful contractor may be required to purchase all inventory of
food and supply items currently in leased storage, the sponsor's warehouse, and in storage in any of
the schools. Current market value will be utilized to determine the value of said items. Explain how
the contractor proposes to make this payment.

2. A la carte (as appropriate): A la carte items are offered in elementary, middle/junior and senior high
schools and only with the sponsor's approval at each location. Describe the contractor's plan for
operation of the a la carte program.

3. Adult Meals: Describe the contractor's plan for operation of an adult meal service program.

4. Meal Preparation Sites: Meals may be prepared at the locations presently used or such other
kitchen/service arrangements as are proposed by the contractor and acceptable to the sponsor.
Submit a plan for operation that sets forth school locations by name where food will be prepared and a
list of school locations by name to be served by preparation kitchens. Proposed on-site preparation
kitchens shall also be identified by name. Refer to Exhibit A, item 12 for a list of current food
preparation and serving sites.

5. Additional Equipment or Building Modifications: In the event the contractor's package calls for
additional equipment or building modifications, submit a plan showing costs, detailed descriptions, and
locations. Indicate who shall pay the cost of such modifications. Any building modifications must be
approved by the sponsor's board of education.

6. Nutrition Education (as appropriate): Describe nutrition education programs the contractor will provide
for students, teachers, parents and other interested parties.

103



Contractor Exhibits - Revised 11/08/07; 9:44 AM

Exhibit M - Annual Budget Projection
(Cost Reimbursement Contracts Only)

Projected Revenue: Refer to Exhibit D for participation data needed for revenue projections.
PROJECTED REVENUE

Revenue Source

(A)

Number of
Meals/Milk/Snacks

(B)

Proposed
Selling Price or
Reimbursement

(C)

Projected
Revenue
B (x) C =

(D)
LOCAL SOURCES

Student Breakfasts
Paid - Elementary $ $
Paid - Middle/Jr. High $ $
Paid - Sr. High $ $
Reduced - All Students $.3000 $

Student Lunches
Paid - Elementary $ $
Paid - Middle/Jr. High $ $
Paid - Sr. High $ $
Reduced - All Students $.4000 $

Student Special Milk $ $
Student After-School Snacks

Paid - Elementary $ $
Paid - Middle/Jr. High $ $
Paid - Sr. High $ $
Reduced - All Students .$1500 $

Student A la Carte $ $
Adult Breakfasts $ $
Adult Lunches $ $
Adult A la Carte $ $
Miscellaneous (special functions,

vending, bank interest, other)
$

STATE SOURCES
School Food Assistance paid on
all Public School Student Breakfasts

$0.05 $

School Food Assistance paid on all
Public School Student Lunches

$0.01 $

FEDERAL SOURCES
Student Breakfasts

Paid $ $
Reduced/Severe Need $ $
Free/Severe Need $ $

Student Lunches
Paid $ $
Reduced $ $
Free $ $

Student Special Milk
Paid $ $
Free (reimbursed at cost per unit) $ $

Student After-School Snacks
Paid $ $
Reduced $ $
Free $ $

A. TOTAL PROJECTED REVENUE $ $

104



Contractor Exhibits - Revised 11/08/07; 9:44 AM

Exhibit M - Annual Budget Projection, continued

Projected Expenditures: Refer to Exhibit G, Division of Costs for Food Service Program. The Sponsor
and Contractor should each complete budget projections on this form for each of their respective cost
items as specified on Exhibit G.

PROJECTED EXPENDITURES

Item
(A)

Number of
Meals/Milk/Snacks

(B)

Projected
Cost Per Meal

(C)

Total Item
Cost
(D)

FOOD COST
Breakfasts:

Elementary $ $
Secondary / Adult $ $

Lunches:
Elementary $ $
Secondary / Adult $ $

Student Special Milk $ $
Snacks

Elementary $ $
Secondary / Adult $ $

A la Carte $
Special Functions $
Rebates and Discounts $
Other $

LABOR COST
Hourly Wages:

Bookkeeper / Secretarial $
Food Service Workers $
Driver $
Other $

Hourly Benefits and Taxes:
FICA $
Retirement $
Unemployment Compensation $
Workers' Compensation $
Health Insurance $
Life Insurance and Disability $
Holidays $

Management Salaries $
Management Benefits and Taxes $

OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES
Telephone, local service $
Telephone, long distance $
Utilities (heat, power, water) $
Extermination $
Laundry $
Other $
FSMC Management Fee * $

105



Contractor Exhibits - Revised 11/08/07; 9:44 AM

Exhibit M - Annual Budget Projection, continued

Item
(A)

Number of
Meals/Milk/Snacks

(B)

Projected
Cost Per Meal

(C)

Total Item
Cost
(D)

SUPPLIES
Disposable Serviceware $
Cleaning Supplies $
Paper Supplies $
Uniforms $
Menu Paper $
Menu Printing $
Promotional Materials $
Office Supplies $

EQUIPMENT & REPAIR
Replacement of Capital/Major
Equipment

$

Replacement of Expendable/Minor
Equipment

$

Repair of Equipment (Normal wear
and tear)

$

Repair of Equipment Resulting
from Negligence of Contractor’s
Employees

$

Repair of Equipment Resulting
from Negligence of Sponsor’s
Employees

$

Painting $

OTHER
Depreciation $
Audit fees $
Licenses/Permits $
Promotions $
Mileage $
Physicals $
Telephone $
Tax $
Miscellaneous $

B. TOTAL PROJECTED COSTS
$

* See additional information in Exhibit N regarding Food Service Management Company (FSMC) fees.

106



Contractor Exhibits - Revised 11/08/07; 9:44 AM

Exhibit M - Annual Budget Projection, continued

Budget Summary

A. Total Projected Revenue: $
B. Total Projected Expenditures: (-) $
C. Profit / Loss (=) $

107



Contractor Exhibits - Revised 11/08/07; 9:44 AM

Exhibit N –
Food Service Management Company (FSMC)

Fee Proposal

1. Fee Components

The FSMC’s management fee must be:
 a fixed price,
 inclusive of all general and administrative fees, as well as profit, and
 in compliance with USDA rules and regulations.

In addition to the above requirements, the management fee MUST include any costs to be
recovered by the FSMC for the services listed below. The following costs MAY NOT be
included in any other expense charged to the SPONSOR.

a. Menu development specific to the operation
b. Management meetings, and/or management development program specific to the

operation
c. Nutrition education materials and program expense
d. Facilities layout and design services specific to the operation
e. Cost of developing training or procedures manuals
f. Food service control forms and supplies
g. Materials for food service promotions
h. All purchasing services
i. Education provided through classroom programs, parent/teacher meetings and school

food service advisory committee meetings
j. All accounting and bookkeeping
k. All payroll reporting, recording and documentation including the issuance of weekly

payroll checks for food service management company employees
l. Supply of all administrative, dietetic, nutritional, sanitation and personnel advice
m. Visitation/coverage by corporate chef during school food service promotions
n. Visitation/coverage by a principal or other executive of the food service management

company

108



Contractor Exhibits - Revised 11/08/07; 9:44 AM

Exhibit N – FSMC Fee Proposal, continued

2. Fee Structure

The proposed fee is to be quoted with a price:

For Each Type of Meal (i.e. lunch, breakfast, snack, non-reimbursable) based on the
number of meals/equivalents shown on Table 1, column B, lines 1 through 4.

The fee structure is a fixed fee including only a management fee per meal/meal equivalent.
The Sponsor directly pays all costs of operating the food service program.

109



Contractor Exhibits - Revised 11/08/07; 9:44 AM

Exhibit N – FSMC Fee Proposal, continued

3. Management Fee Estimate –

Table 1. Management Fee Per Type of Meal

Meal Type
Column A

Number of Meals or
Equivalents

Column B

Fee Per
Meal or
Equivalent

Column C

Estimated
Total Fees

(Column B x C)
Column D

1. Total Student Lunches
(Exhibit D, Table 1, column B)

$ $

2. Total Student Breakfasts
(Exhibit D, Table 3, column B)

$ $

3. Total Student Snacks
(Exhibit D, Table 5, column B)

$ $

4. Non-Reimbursable Meal Equivalents
(Exhibit D, Table 7, column C
divided by $_______)

$ $

5. Estimated Total Management Fees
(Sum of lines 1 through 4)

$

110



Contractor Exhibits - Revised 11/08/07; 9:44 AM

Exhibit N – FSMC Fee Proposal, continued

Table 3. Meal Fee Per Type of Meal

Meal Type
Column A

Number of Meals or
Equivalents

Column B

Fee Per
Meal or

Equivalent
Column C

Estimated
Total Fees

(Column B x C)
Column D

1. Total Student Lunches
(Exhibit D, Table 1, column B)

$ $

2. Total Student Breakfasts
(Exhibit D, Table 3, column B)

$ $

3. Total Student Snacks
(Exhibit D, Table 5, column B)

$ $

4. Non-Reimbursable Meal Equivalents
(Exhibit D, Table 7, column C
divided by $___________)

$ $ $

5. Estimated Total Meal Fees
(Sum of lines 1 through 4)

$

111



Contractor Exhibits - Revised 11/08/07; 9:44 AM

Exhibit N – FSMC Fee Proposal, continued

1. Management Fee Proposal

CONTRACTOR NAME,

a food service management company (hereinafter referred to as the FSMC), agrees to operate
the school food service program of Millard Public Schools, a federal Child Nutrition Program
sponsor (hereinafter referred to as the SPONSOR) as described in the SPONSOR’s Request
for Proposal (RFP) specifications for the 200__-200__ school year and for school years
_________, __________, _________, and __________, subject to subsequent negotiated one-
year extensions of our agreement.

The FSMC’s management fee proposal is based upon the fee structure specified by the
SPONSOR in Exhibit N of its RFP and the management fee estimates provided by the FSMC in
Exhibit N.

This proposal is subject to negotiation throughout the procurement process and to all the
attached definitions, terms, conditions, and specifications contained in the RFP and all of its
exhibits. The FSMC hereby agrees to enter into an appropriate SPONSOR/FSMC agreement
subsequent to the award of the contract.

Name of Food Service Management Company

Name of Company Representative

Title

Signature

Date

Address

Area Code / Phone Number

112



Contractor Exhibits - Revised 11/08/07; 9:44 AM

Exhibit O - Personnel and Staffing Plans

1. Personnel Costs:

Job Category
Number of
Positions

Average
Hourly
Wage

Average
Hours Per

Week

Total
Cost

Per Week
Director/Supervisor
Kitchen Managers
Cooks
Assistants
Cashiers
Other
TOTAL

a. G Yes G No Does the contractor propose that all present food service employees will
be retained as employees of the sponsor?

If item 1 is "yes", complete items b. and c. If item 1 is "no", skip to item d.

b. G Yes G No Does the contractor intend to hire and fire all food service employees?

c. Should a problem occur with an employee, how does the contractor intend to work through
the sponsor's grievance procedure that is now in place?

d. G Yes G No Does the contractor propose to change all hourly employees to become
employees of the contractor?

If item d. is yes , complete items e. and f.

e. Describe the contractor's plans for transitioning employees from the sponsor to the contractor.

f. Describe fringe benefits that will be provided for the contractor's food service employees.

113



Contractor Exhibits - Revised 11/08/07; 9:44 AM

Exhibit O - Personnel and Staffing Plans, continued

1. Staffing Plan:

a. Attach a detailed staffing plan for each food service operation using the following format. Within
each table, list job titles in order from highest to lowest classification. Label as Exhibit O,2,a.

Salaried Positions
Job Title Number of

Positions
Monthly
Salary

Benefits Retirement
Program

Hourly Positions
Job Title Number of

Positions
Average

Hourly Wage
Benefits Retirement

Program

a. Student Help (as appropriate): Students are currently utilized for limited times and limited kitchen
duties in many schools. Students receive only free meals for their work. Student help is
contingent upon approval of the building principal. If the contractor intends to use student help,
explain how and to what extent.

114



Contractor Exhibits - Revised 11/08/07; 9:44 AM

Exhibit P - Plans to Increase Program Participation

Based upon the participation data provided in Exhibit D., describe specific actions that will be taken to
maintain and increase student participation in the food service programs.

115



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

Board of Education Committee Meeting 
November 12, 2007

Building Fund Project Requests
for 

Summer 2008

116



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

Projects were initially recommended and prioritized 
by the Maintenance Department, then reviewed and 
prioritized by the District Projects Committee on 
October 8, 2007.

117



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management
•Athletics:  Buell Visitor’s Seating, WHS Gym Floors, 

Bleacher Improvements at KMS & SHS 
•Drainage Improvements: BMS
•Paving:  Ezra, Hitchcock, Holling Hgts, Montclair 
•Irrigation:  DSAC and 5 Elementary Sites
•Weatherproofing: Aldrich, Disney, Neihardt, AMS
•Exterior Renovation: Cottonwood Soffits & Fascia
•Roofs: Ackerman, NHS
•Doors/Frames: 7 Buildings
•Interior Renovations: AMS, SSC
•Flooring: NMS, WHS
•Painting:  5 Elementary Buildings
•Restrooms: Black Elk, Ezra
•HVAC: Abbott, KMS, RMS, NHS
•Kitchen Equipment: Norris
•Fire Detection: Abbott

118



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

Buell Visitors Grandstand Improvements

119



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

West High Gym Floors

120



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

Bleacher Improvements: KMS, SHS

121



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

BMS Drainage Improvements

122



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

Ezra Hard Surface Play Area Replacement

123



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

Hitchcock ADA Access Improvements

124



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

Holling Heights Parking and Play Area Paving 

125



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

Montclair West Drive and Parking Paving 

126



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

Sites: Hitchcock, Reagan, Rohwer, Willowdale, Upchurch, DSAC

Features
Connects local, independent irrigation controls to the computers of centrally-based 
managers through existing radio frequency and data network systems. All high 
schools and middle schools were completed and brought on-line 2005-2007. This 
project will complete all elementary schools and special buildings with existing, 
major irrigation systems.

Benefits
•Provides full remote control of significant irrigation systems by district-level 
managers

•Reduces water consumption

•Ensures district-wide continuity for irrigation practices, quantities, start/stop
times, etc.

Automated Irrigation Control Improvements 

127



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

Weatherproofing: Aldrich, Disney, Neihardt, AMS 

128



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

Cottonwood Soffits and Fascia 

129



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

MPS Roof Statistics

Magnitude of Existing MPS Roofs
•2.6 million sq. ft. (i.e., 58 football fields)
•130,000 sq. ft./yr (20-year avg. life)
•$ 1.43 million/yr. budget (Bldg. Fund)

•New roof area to be added through 2008:
•253,096 sq. ft.
(5.6 additional football fields)

•Existing roofs currently beyond 20 yrs:
14  Elementary Schools
1  Middle Schools  
2  High Schools
4  Special Buildings

130



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

Ackerman Re-roof Phase I of II 

131



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

NHS Re-roof Phase II-08 

132



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

Exterior Door and Window Replacements 

133



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

AMS Interior Renovation Package 

134



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

SSC Main Office Renovations 

135



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

NMS Commons and Corridor Carpet Replacement 

136



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

WHS Phase II of II Carpet Replacement 

137



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

Interior Repainting: Bryan, Holling Hgts, Norris 

138



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

Interior Repainting: Cottonwood, Harvey Oaks 

139



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

Restroom Partition Replacements: Black Elk, Ezra 

140



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

Abbott HVAC Improvements  

141



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

KMS HVAC and Lighting Improvement Study 
This study (similar to the AMS study and project that followed  in 06-07) will look at 
the causes of high humidity, poor indoor air quality and inferior interior lighting. 
Recommendations for corrective work will result in requests for funding for Summer 
2009 Projects. 

The criteria for the study are:
• 1988 Original equipment does not condition outside air
• Humid outside air creates comfort and mold issues
• Higher-quality ventilation results in lower CO2 levels
• Conditions are worst when outside air is cool and humid
• Humidity control is essential to prevent mold growth
• Compare interior lighting levels with current standards of design

142



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

RMS HVAC Improvements  
A study was conducted throughout the spring and summer of 2007 which 
collected  data to be analyzed by the engineers. The study report was compiled 
and issued in October, resulting in the following recommendations:

• High humidity levels should be addressed by adding dedicated equipment to 
condition the ventilation air before it is introduced to the spaces. This will require 
10 new roof-mounted dehumidification units, which will serve the 17 existing air 
intake hoods.

• Relief dampers should be installed to maintain reasonable static air pressures 
in all conditions.

• DDC controls should be installed on all new equipment and integrated with 
existing energy management controls.

• DDC controls should be retrofitted into two of the existing air handlers.

• Electrical and other infrastructure must be upgraded to support the new 
improvements.

143



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

NHS Cooling Loop Piping Replacements  

144



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

Norris Kitchen Hood Replacement  

145



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

Abbott Fire Detection System Replacement  

146



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

Total Project Cost Summary by Discipline 

Civil Projects          512,400

Architectural Projects       1,869,211

Mechanical Projects          810,900

Electrical Projects            75,000     

10% Contingency          326,751

Soft Costs (18%)          588,152     

Total Requests     $4,182,414

147



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

Excel Cost Worksheet 

148



SUMMER PROJECTS 2008
Millard Public Schools                                          Project Management

(A) Estimated Total Construction Costs: Anticipated amount of bid award

(B) Construction Cost Contingency: = 10% of (A)

(C) Estimated Total Soft Costs include:

• Architect’s and engineer’s fees, including contract administration

• Document printing and postage

• Survey, geotechnical, and construction testing fees

• HVAC air and water balancing, HVAC commissioning fees

• Project support costs to MPS vendors and sub-contractors

(D) Estimated Total Project Requests: Sum of (A+B+C)

Cost Total Definitions 

149



Sub Discipline Location Project

A-E Const 
Cost 

Estimate
Discipline 
Sub-total

Maint 
Dept 

Priority

Project 
Committee 

Priority

District 
Admin 
Priority Notes 

Athletic Facilities Buell Visitors Visitor's Grandstand Structural Improvements 23,150 10 16 16

Irrigation 5 Elem, DSAC Automated Irrigation Control Improvements 18,000 26 26 26

Paving Ezra Play Area Paving Improvements 82,500 16 10 10

Montclair West Drive & Parking Paving Improvements 105,000 8 8 8 affects summer programs

Hitchcock ADA Access Improvements (4 fire egress points) 15,000 9 9 9 coordinate with summer programs

Holling Heights Parking & Play Area Paving Improvements 225,000 17 17 17 no summer school or activities

Drainage 
Improvements Beadle Middle Grading & Drainage Improvements 43,750 512,400 7 7 7 coordinate with summer programs

Exterior Cottonwood Soffit and Fascia Improvements (14 locations) 95,000 27 27 27 coordinate with summer programs

Weatherproofing Aldrich Weatherproofing Improvements 23,846 coordinate with summer programs
Disney Weatherproofing Improvements 44,093 coordinate with summer programs
Neihardt Weatherproofing Improvements 40,697 coordinate with summer programs
Andersen Middle Weatherproofing Improvements 56,845 coordinate with summer programs

Roofs Ackerman Re-roof Phase I of II (base bid) 223,850 4 4 4 no summer school or activities
Ackerman Re-roof Phase I of II (alternate 1) 74,000 4 4 4 no summer school or activities
North High Re-roof Phase II-08 (base bid) 348,730 5 5 5 no summer school or activities
North High Re-roof Phase II-08 (alternate 1) 116,700 5 5 5 no summer school or activities

Doors & Windows 7 Buildings Exterior Door and Window Replacements 100,000 1,123,761 12 12 12 coordinate with summer programs

Athletic Facilities West High Gym Floor Refinishing (both Wildcat I & II) 53,000 29 29 29 no gym camps or activities

Interior Renovation Andersen M S Interior Renovation Package (ceilings, fire detection, 
gym floors, lighting, carpet) 268,200 6 6 6 no summer school or activities

Gym Bleachers Kiewit Middle Bleacher Step Improvements 3,000 19 19 19 coordinate with summer use
South High (main) Bleacher End Rail Improvements 12,000 18 18 18 coordinate with summer use

Remodeling Support Services Main Office Renovations 59,000 30 30 30 coordinate for services affected

Restroom Partitions Black Elk Restroom Partition Improvements 28,500 20 20 20 no summer school or activities
Ezra Restroom Partition Improvements 23,000 21 21 21 no summer school or activities

Interior Keyed Locks Abbott, Cody, Ezra Keyed Lock Improvements (interior system locks) 6,500 13 13 13 coordinate with summer programs

Painting Bryan Lobby Repainting
Holling Heights Gym Repainting (alternate for gym restrooms)
Norris Metal Ceiling Repainting (2 kindergarten & comns)
Cottonwood Corridor & Commons Repainting (alt for restrooms) 27,300 23 23 23 no summer school or activities
Harvey Oaks Media Center & K-1 Repainting 9,800 24 24 24 no summer school or activities

Carpeting North Middle Commons & Corridor Carpet Replacements 51,150 14 14 14 no summer school or activities
West High Carpet Replacements Phase II of II (alt for 00 add) 182,000 745,450 28 28 28 no summer school or activities

HVAC Systems Abbott HVAC Improvements (IAQ & humidity control) 180,000 22 22 22 no summer school or activities
Norris Kitchen Hood System Replacement 75,000
Kiewit Middle HVAC & Lighting Improvement Study 9,500 3 3 3 coordinate with summer programs
Russell Middle HVAC Improvements (IAQ & humidity control) 464,500 2 2 2 no summer school - gym use OK
North High Cooling Loop Piping Replacements 81,900 810,900 1 1 1 no summer school or activities

Fire Detection Abbott Fire Detection System Replacement 75,000 75,000 15 15 15 no summer school or activities

A Estimated Total Construction Costs 3,267,511
B 10% Construction Cost Contingency 326,751
C Estimated Total Soft Costs (18%) 588,152
D Total Project Requests $4,182,414

2008 Summer Project Requests: Architect's / Engineer's Estimates

22,000 no summer school or activities25 25 25

11 11 11

150


	Committee Packet November 12, 2007
	Superintendent Goals
	Goal #1
	Goal #2
	Goal #3
	Review Food Service Management Contract RFP
	Summer Projects 2008
	Estimates 2008



